
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Mackey

AGENDA January 21, 2015

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Mackey

Minutes Recessed Meeting - December 31, 2014

Minutes Agenda Session - December 31, 2014

Minutes Regular Meeting - January 7, 2015

Report Order of Designation - Planning Commission - Todd Leamon - January 12, 2015

Res. No. 115-22 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions and oath of Deputy
Sheriff.

Res. No. 115-23 A Resolution confirming the reappointment by the County Mayor of one member to the
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority Board of Trustees for a term ending October
31, 2017.

Res. No. 115-24 A Resolution confirming the reappointment by the County Mayor of one member to the Carter
Street Corporation Board of Directors for a term ending January 5, 2019.

Res. No. 115-25A A Resolution Granting a Special Permit for a Planned Unit Development at 8246 Roy Lane.

Res. No. 115-25B A Resolution Granting a Special Permit for a Planned Unit Development at 8246 Roy Lane.

Res. No. 115-26 A Resolution to Rezone from M-1 Industrial District, A-1 Agricultural District and R-5 Single Wide
Manufactured Home District to R-1 Single Family Residential District, properties located at 6114,
6116, 6118, 6126, 6130, 6136, 6236, 6244, 6246, 6254, & 6280 Ooltewah-Georgetown Road.

Res. No. 115-27 A Resolution granting a Special Exceptions Permit for a Residential Planned Unit Development
on properties located at 6114, 6116, 6118, 6126, 6130, 6136, 6236, 6244, 6246, 6254, & 6280
Ooltewah-Georgetown Road.

Res. No. 115-28 A Resolution Granting the Abandonment of an Unnamed Right-Of-Way off of the 6200 block of
Ooltewah-Georgetown Road.

Res. No. 115-29 A Resolution to Amend the Hamilton County Zoning Regulations, Article V General Provisions
Section 105(3)(b) to clarify the “effective date” mentioned in the text.

Res. No. 115-30 A Resolution to accept a continuation contract between the Sheriff’s Office and the Hamilton
County Department of Education to provide two (2) school resource officers for two years,
between July 1, 2014 and June 30, 2016 and to amend the Sheriff’s budget.

Res. No. 115-31 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to apply for a clean energy grant sponsored by the
Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation that will pay half the cost of a lighting
system upgrade in the courts building that is estimated to cost $401,056.

Res. No. 115-32 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign a continuation contract with the Tennessee
Department of Health and Hamilton County, Tennessee, the Health Services Division, operating
as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department, for the fiscal year 2015-2018 contract
period, in an amount not to exceed $39,300 ($13,100 per year) to provide case management
services in accordance with the Department of Health Prevention of Childhood Lead Poisoning
Program guidelines.

Res. No. 115-33 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to renew the agreement with the State of Tennessee
on behalf of the Tennessee Bureau of Investigation for Hamilton County Information Technology
Services and Hamilton County Geographic Information Systems to provide professional services
throughout calendar year 2015 in support and development of software for the Tennessee
Bureau of Investigation not to exceed $155,000.

Res. No. 115-34 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of December 1,
2014, through December 31, 2014, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.



Res. No. 115-35 A Resolution  (1) Establishing the minimum bid amount for certain parcels of property acquired
by Hamilton County through previous delinquent tax sales, (2) Authorizing the offer of said
parcels for sale at that minimum bid amount, and (3) Authorizing certain said parcels to be
offered for sale for an amount less than the total amount of taxes, penalty, cost and interest
accumulated against the property.

Res. No. 115-36 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to execute all documents necessary to convey to the
City of Chattanooga Hamilton County's interest in property jointly owned by the City and County.

Res. No. 115-36A A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to execute all documents necessary to convey to the
City of Chattanooga Hamilton County's interest in property jointly owned by the City and County.

Res. No. 115-37 A Resolution for Waldens Ridge Emergency Services to sell a 1971 Custom Seagrave Pumper
which is co-titled with Hamilton County Government and authorizing the County Mayor to sign
any documents necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 115-38 A Resolution for Waldens Ridge Emergency Services to sell a 1980 FMC/Ford Pumper which is
co-titled with Hamilton County Government and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
documents necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 115-39 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to execute a contract with the Department of Military
of the Tennessee Emergency Management Agency for a 2015 Homeland Security Grant with a
period of 09/01/2014 through 04/30/2016 and amending the budget of the Emergency Services
Department by adding $ 170,836.20 to revenues and expenditures.

Res. No. 115-40A A Resolution authorizing the issuance of a request for bids for the purchase of chairs for the
General Sessions and Criminal Courts of Hamilton County, Tennessee, and appropriating funds
necessary for said purchase.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DECEMBER 31, 2014 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  December 31, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 31st day of December, 2014, a 

Recessed Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun 

and held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County 

Commission Room, when the following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman.  Deputy 

County Clerk Michael Clark called the roll of the County Commission and the 

following, constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner 

Bankston, Commissioner Beck, Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, 

Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields.    Total present – 9.  Total absent 

-0. 

 Commissioner Fairbanks introduced his pastor, Calvin Nunley of Christ 

Family Church for the invocation.  Commissioner Fairbanks led in the pledge to 

the flag. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1214-9  A RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY AND VOLKSWAGEN GROUP 

OF AMERICA, INC. FOR AN OFFICE COMPLEX LOCATED AT 7000 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DECEMBER 31, 2014 
 

 2

DISCOVERY DRIVE, CHATTANOOGA, TENNESSEE, AND AUTHORIZING 

THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL DOCUMENTS 

NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE SAID LEASE. 

 

 Chairman Fields indicated this item had not been before a committee and 

was placed on the agenda at the request of Mayor Coppinger. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger indicated he had requested consideration of this item 

today due to the time sensitivity.  He indicated Volkswagen wishes to move into 

the building on January 5th. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger explained that this was a 30,000 square foot building in 

the Enterprise South Industrial Park formerly occupied by the Eastside Utility 

District and owned by Hamilton County.  Volkswagen had leased the building 

previously during construction of their facility, but it had been unoccupied for a 

period of time.  During the time when the building remained empty it was 

vandalized.  Volkswagen wished to again lease the building during the expansion 

of their existing automobile assembly plant.  The lease terms would be $5.00 per 

square foot for three years with two one-year extension opportunities. The 

potential period of occupancy would be five years.  In addition, Volkswagen 

would spend approximately one million dollars in repairs and renovations to the 

building. 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DECEMBER 31, 2014 
 

 3

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner 

Beck, to adopt Resolution No. 1214-9. 

 

 Mayor Coppinger and County Attorney Taylor responded to questions 

from Commissioners regarding the lease agreement terms as well as future 

plans for the sale of this property once the lease expires. 

 

 The foregoing Resolution  was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye.” Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes - 9.  Total Nay votes – 0.   

 

 Commissioner Haynes asked for clarification from Attorney Taylor as to 

procedures to remove an item from the table.  Attorney Taylor indicated it 

required a motion and second and six favorable votes to remove an item from the 

table. 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DECEMBER 31, 2014 
 

 4

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner 

Fairbanks, to remove Resolution No. 1114-9 from the table. 

 

 (For the record the item tabled was 1114-9A.  No action was taken on 

Resolution 1114-9.) 

 

 Chairman Fields indicated he did not have this resolution in front of him, 

but it was placed on the table at the November 19, 2014 meeting and pertained 

to office furnishings for the Criminal Courts. 

  

 The foregoing Motion to take Resolution No. 1114-9 (1114-9A) from the 

table failed on a Roll Call vote with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Nay”; Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Nay”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Mackey, “Nay”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Fields, “Nay.”  Total “Aye” votes – 5.  Total “Nay” votes – 4.  Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0. 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DECEMBER 31, 2014 
 

 5

 

Being no further business Chairman Fields declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

    Respectfully submitted: 
 
      

____________________________________    
    William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 
 

Approved: 
 
 
____     
Date      Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

DECEMBER 31, 2014 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON   )  December 31, 2014 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED , that on this 31st day of December, 2014, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman.  Deputy County 

Clerk Michael Clark called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, 

Commissioner Beck, Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner 

Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and 

Chairman Fields.  Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

PRESENTATION 

 Commissioner Fairbanks presented a Certificate for Outstanding Community 

Service to Madison Cravey, a student at Daisy Elementary School.  He read from a 

News Channel 9 story where Madison had been chosen as a Pay It Forward recipient 

for her exceptional acts of kindness.  Additionally, Madison’s father who was on leave 

from military service in Afghanistan was thanked with a standing ovation. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

DECEMBER 31, 2014 
 

2 
 

 Also present in the audience to celebrate Madison’s recognition were City of 

Soddy Daisy Mayor Rick Nunley, Commissioner Patti Skates, and Daisy Elementary 

principal Samantha Walter.  Principal Walter expressed her appreciation to Madison. 

 Members of the Commission shook hands with and personally congratulated 

Madison and her family members. 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 Chairman Fields indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

• Resolution No. 115-1 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  This required no 
committee assignment. 

• Criminal Court Clerk reports for September and October 2014 would be submitted for the record. 
• An Order of Designation for Todd Leamon to serve on the Planning Commission at the December 

8, 2014 meeting would be submitted for the record. 
• The Trustee’s Excess Fee Report and Monthly Report for November 2014 would be submitted for 

the record 
•  for the month of March 2014 would be submitted as a matter of record. 
• An order appointing Floyd D. Ferrell to the Savannah Valley Utility District Board of 

Commissioners would be submitted for the record. 
• Resolutions No. 115-2 and 115-3 were assigned to the Zoning Committee, chaired by 

Commissioner Bankston. 
• Resoluitons No. 115-12, 13 and 14 were assigned to the Roads Committee, chaired by 

Commissioner Haynes. 
• Resolutions No. 115-4 through 115-11 and 115-15 through 115-20 were assigned to the Finance 

Committee, chaired by Commissioner Graham. 
• Resolution No. 115-21 was heard by a Committee of the Whole. 
 
 
 
 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

DECEMBER 31, 2014 
 

3 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 115-21 
 

 Chairman Fields indicated Walden’s Ridge Emergency Services handles 

emergency service to the entire incorporated area of Signal Mountain as well as an area 

along Suck Creek Road.  Two fire engines used by this group are over twenty years old 

and in poor working condition.  He explained that this expenditure from his district 

discretionary funds would be used to assist in the purchase of replacement equipment.  

There were no questions regarding the resolution. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission. 

 All members of the Commission, Mayor Coppinger and Attorney Taylor wished 

citizens a safe and Happy New Year. 

 Commissioner Haynes invited participation this evening in the Karen Lawrence 

Run for the Ronald McDonald House Charities.  Registration is at 6 pm and the run 

would begin at 7 pm. 

 Commissioner Graham reported his daughter attended her first high school 

dance recently and he was not permitted to attend.  He also reported the birth of his first 

granddaughter, Kinsley Paige Graham, who was born in the early morning of December 

26.  He urged everyone to usher in the New Year with their family and loved ones. 

 Commissioner Bankston recognized his wife in the audience and thanked her for 

her attendance. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

DECEMBER 31, 2014 
 

4 
 

 Commissioner Fairbanks thanked his daughter in the audience for her 

attendance. 

 Commissioner Beck congratulated Commissioner Graham and welcomed him 

into the crazy grandparents club where he would find himself bragging about his 

grandchildren and indulging them completely. 

 Mayor Coppinger expressed his thanks to Soddy Daisy Mayor Nunley and 

Commissioner Skates for their excellence in leading that City.  He also congratulated 

them for their stewardship in acquiring land known locally as the Big Soddy Creek Gulf.  

This land would be held in trust as a wilderness area for the benefit of the citizens of the 

community. 

 Chairman Fields also recognized his wife in the audience and expressed 

appreciation for her attendance. 

DELEGATIONS 

 Chairman Fields asked if there were delegations to speak on any matters other 

than zoning.   

Sheriff Jim Hammond asked to make a presentation. 

PRESENTATION – SHERIFF JIM HAMMOND 

 Sheriff Hammond showed a brief video demonstrating the need for SUVs being 

requested in Resolution No. 115-7 due to the large amount of equipment to be carried 

by officers on patrol.  He indicated he would be speaking to the Finance Committee 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

DECEMBER 31, 2014 
 

5 
 

following the agenda session regarding the item but had wanted to demonstrate the 

need before the full Commission. 

 Chairman Fields indicated committees would meet immediately following 

adjournment.  There were no further delegations. 

 Being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting adjourned until 

Wednesday, January 7, 2015, at 9:30 AM. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

______________________________ 
William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

 
 
Approved: 
 
______    ____________ 
Date         Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )   January 7, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED,  that on this 7th day of January, 2015, a Regular Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman.  County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Total 

present - 9.  Total absent – 0.  

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 2

Commissioner Mackey introduced Pastor Fletcher Farris, Community Missionary 

Baptist Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Mackey led in the pledge to 

the flag 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, that 

the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of November 26, 2014, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of November 26, 2014, the Regular Meeting of December 3, 2014, the 

Recessed Meeting of December 10, 2014, the Recessed Meeting of December 17, 

2014, the Recessed Meeting of December 24, 2014, be approved, treat same as read, 

made a matter of record and filed.  The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd , “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 3

TRUSTEE’S EXCESS FEE REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s excess fee report for November 2014 was submitted and made a 

matter of record.  

 

TRUSTEE’S MONTHLY REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s monthly report for November 2014 was submitted and made a 

matter of record.  

 

ORDER OF APPOINTMENT 

 

 County Mayor Coppinger submitted for the record an Order appointing Floyd D. 

Ferrell to the Savannah Valley Utility District Board of Commissioners to serve a four-

year term expiring December 15, 2018. 

 

CRIMINAL COURT CLERK REPORT 

 

The Criminal Court Clerk Report the months of September 2014 and October 

2014 were submitted and made a matter of record.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 4

 ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting December 

8, 2014.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-1  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND A CCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, 

to adopt Resolution No. 115-1.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Chairman Fields asked that Resolution No. 115-21 be heard at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-21 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EX PENDITURE OF 

FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($50,000.00) IN DISCRETIONAR Y FUNDS (AS 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 5

ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT TWO) TOWARD THE PURCHASE OF A FIRE ENGINE 

FOR WALDEN RIDGE EMERGENCY SERVICES. 

 

 Chairman Fields reported that this Resolution had been heard by a Committee of 

the Whole. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 115-21.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Chairman Fields asked that Resolutions No. 115-2 and 115-3 be considered 

together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-2  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A -1 

AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R-3 RESIDENTIAL APARTMENT DISTRICT, PART 

OF PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 4821 PATTENTOWN ROAD AND 4 906 BOBBY 

JEFFERY DRIVE. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 6

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-3 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE HAMI LTON COUNTY 

ZONING REGULATIONS BY ADDING SECTION 107 TO ARTICLE  III IN ORDER TO 

DEFINE VESTED RIGHTS IN THE CONTEXT OF DEVELOPMENT PLANS. 

 

Commissioner Haynes provided details regarding Resolutions No. 115-2 and 

115-3 and stated that the Zoning Committee reviewed and recommended approval. He 

noted that although the Regional Planning Agency (RPA) staff originally recommended 

denial, the Planning Commission had approved the request. 

 

Upon request by Commissioner Haynes, RPA Executive Director John Bridger 

provided additional details regarding the request. 

 

Attorney Taylor indicated he had reviewed and approved of the vested property 

rights outlined in Resolution No. 115-3.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 115-2 and 115-3.   

 

Commissioner Mackey asked Mr. Bridger whether he believed it was becoming 

easier or more difficult for developers to develop large properties in Hamilton County. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 7

Mr. Bridger responded that it depended on the specific project and location under 

consideration.  He noted that with fewer large properties available, it may make 

accessible locations more limited for developers to choose from. He also stated that 

RPA staff meets with applicants in advance of the Commission taking action. 

 

Commissioner Bankston asked if there was any opposition present to these 

items. There was none. 

 

The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolutions No. 115-4 through 115-11 and 115-15 

through 115-20 be considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-4 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID  OF CHRYSLER 

DODGE JEEP RAM OF COLUMBIA FOR TWO (2) CREW CAB PIC KUP TRUCKS 

AMOUNTING TO $48,624.00 FOR THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMEN T AND 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 8

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-5 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID  OF MOUNTAIN 

VIEW FORD FOR ONE (1) PRISONER TRANSPORT/CARGO VAN AMOUNTING TO 

$26,520.00 FOR THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORI ZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-6 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID  OF MOUNTAIN 

VIEW CHEVROLET FOR MODEL YEAR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING  FOR MARKED 

POLICE PURSUIT SEDANS FOR HAMILTON COUNTY AND TO AU THORIZE THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMP LEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-7 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID  OF MOUNTAIN 

VIEW FORD FOR MODEL YEAR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING FOR FLEET POLICE 

PURSUIT UTILITY VEHICLES FOR HAMILTON COUNTY AND TO  AUTHORIZE THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMP LEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 9

RESOLUTION NO. 115-8 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID  OF MOUNTAIN 

VIEW FORD FOR ONE (1) 4X2 UTILITY VEHICLE FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

TRUSTEE’S OFFICE AMOUNTING TO $19,116.00 AND TO AME ND THE GENERAL 

FUND CAPITAL OUTLAY BUDGET FROM PREVIOUSLY UNBUDGET ED FUNDS 

AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRA CTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-9 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE STATE OF TENNE SSEE, 

DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY, TENNESSEE EMERGENCY MANAGEM ENT 

AGENCY AND HAMILTON COUNTY IN THE AMOUNT OF $150,05 0 (ONE 

HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND AND FIFTY DOLLARS). 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-10 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BI D OF LAWSON 

ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC. FOR INSTALLATION, TERMINATIO N, TESTING, 

PROGRAMMING AND CERTIFICATION OF A BOGEN QUANTUM IN TERCOM 

SYSTEM AT EAST BRAINERD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL AMOUNTING  TO 

$29,700.00 FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AN D TO 

AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NE CESSARY TO 

IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 10

RESOLUTION NO. 115-11 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BI D OF CLEARLINE 

NETWORKS, LLC FOR INSTALLATION, TERMINATION, TESTIN G, 

PROGRAMMING AND CERTIFICATION OF THE COMMUNICATIONS  CABLING 

FOR EAST BRAINERD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL AMOUNTING TO $7 9,000.00 FOR 

THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-15 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE  COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH BARGE, WAGGONER, 

SUMNER & CANNON, INC. FOR ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR 

DEMOLITION AND SITE CLEARING ON A PORTION OF THE EN TERPRISE SOUTH 

INDUSTRIAL PARK SUPPLIER PARK FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$58,600.00. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-16 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE  COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH BARGE, WAGGONER, 

SUMNER & CANNON, INC. FOR MASTER PLANNING SERVICES FOR THE 

ENTERPRISE SOUTH INDUSTRIAL PARK SUPPLIER PARK FOR AN AMOUNT 

NOT TO EXCEED $25,000.00. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 11

RESOLUTION NO. 115-17 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE  COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH S & ME INC. FOR 

ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITTING SERVICES FOR THE ENTERPRISE SOUTH 

INDUSTRIAL PARK SUPPLIER PARK FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$18,580.00. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-18 A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PU RCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF NOVEMBER  1, 2014, 

THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2014, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COU NTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESO LUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-19 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BI D OF DON 

LEDFORD AUTO PARK FOR MODEL YEAR CONTRACT UNIT PRIC ING FOR 

FLEET STAFF SEDANS FOR HAMILTON COUNTY AND TO AUTHO RIZE THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMP LEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-20 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PU RCHASE OF TWO 

(2) MID-SIZE SEDANS FROM THE CONTRACT UNIT PRICING FOR FLEET STAFF 

SEDANS FROM DON LEDFORD AUTO PARK FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S OFFICE AMOUNTING TO $37,950.00 AND TO AMEND 

THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S GENERAL FUND CAPITAL OUTLAY  BUDGET FROM 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 12

PREVIOUSLY UNBUDGETED FUNDS AND TO AUTHORIZE THE CO UNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS R ESOLUTION. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 115-4 through 

115-11 and 115-15 through 115-20 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed 

and recommended approval.  

 

Commissioner Mackey noted that although quite a few of these resolutions dealt 

with the purchase of new vehicles, he was glad that the automobiles would be 

distributed fairly amongst the departments purchasing them rather than going only to 

the top staff. He indicated his intent to support these resolutions. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 115-4 through 115-11 and 115-15 through 115-20.  The foregoing 

Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members 

of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner 

Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, 

“Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 13

Chairman Fields asked that Resolutions No. 115-12 through 115-14 be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-12 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MA STER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS” SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWI NG DISTRICT 

ROADS AND TO ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFORE: OWEN S GATE PASS 

AND SCARLET RIDGE. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-13 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE "MA STER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS" SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWI NG DISTRICT 

ROAD AND TO ESTABLISH A SPEED LIMIT THEREFORE: SEDG EFIELD DRIVE 

AS EXTENDED. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 115-14 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MA STER LIST OF 

ROADS AND SPEED LIMITS” SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWI NG DISTRICT 

ROADS AND TO ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFORE: TUCK AHOE PASS 

AND CHIMNEY ROCK TRAIL. 

 

Commissioner Haynes provided details regarding Resolutions No. 115-12 

through 115-14 and stated that the Roads Committee reviewed and recommended 

approval.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 14

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, to 

adopt Resolution No. 115-12 through 115-14.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

  

DISCUSSION RE: RESOLUTION NO. 1114-9A 

 

 Commissioner Haynes indicated a desire to remove from the table Resolution 

No. 1114-9A, which was placed on the table at the November 19, 2014 meeting and 

pertained to office furnishings for the Criminal Courts. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

remove Resolution No. 1114-9A from the table.  On Roll Call the foregoing Motion failed 

to receive the necessary 2/3 vote with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Bankston, “Abstain”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Nay”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Nay”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Nay”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Nay.”  Total 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 15

“Aye” votes – 4.  Total “Nay” votes – 4.  Total Abstentions – 1. Total present – 9.  Total 

absent – 0. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Haynes announced that a public meeting would be held on Friday, 

January 9th at 5:00 PM at the Middle Valley Church of God.  The purpose of the meeting 

would be to discuss a proposed development at the corner of Middle Valley Road and 

Thrasher Pike.  

 

Commissioners Graham, Smedley, and Beck wished Commissioner Mackey a 

happy birthday. 

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke regarding a report that according to Walmart’s 

statistics, Chattanooga had the highest number of recent Tamiflu prescriptions. He 

asked what precautions the County was taking to prevent further spread of the flu. 

 

Health Services Administrator Becky Barnes responded that although this year’s 

vaccine was not an exact match, but being vaccinated was still the best prevention for 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 16

flu spread.  She also encouraged anyone with flu symptoms to stay home from work or 

school to help prevent further infection. 

 

Commissioner Smedley expressed her appreciation to Sheriff Jim Hammond and 

his staff for all their efforts to keep the community safe.  She reported that a 

neighborhood watch meeting would be held this Thursday in her district. 

 

County Clerk Knowles announced that Deputy Clerk Michael Clark had accepted 

a position in the private sector and would serve his last day with his office on Friday.  He 

reported that Deputy Clerk Brooke Weaver had been appointed to succeed Michael in 

the Clerk’s Commission Records Division. He thanked Mr. Clark for his ten years of 

service to the office and wished him the best in his future endeavors. 

 

Chairman Fields and Commissioner Graham also expressed their appreciation to 

Mr. Clark for his service. 

 

DELEGATIONS  

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There were 

none.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

 17

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting in recess 

until Wednesday, January 14, 2015 at 9:30 AM.  

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

Approved: 
   

_______   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 





No. 115-22 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS AND OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF. 
   
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

person named on the attached listing labeled OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF 
has taken the oath of office; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2. That the person named on the listing labeled OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF is 

accepted and the oath therefor is approved as taken; and  
 

 3. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 

















No. 115-23 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY MAYOR 
OF ONE MEMBER TO THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL 
AUTHORITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR A TERM ENING OCTOBER 31, 2017.  
 
 
WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 614-15 this county legislative body adopted an amendment 

to Chapter 297 of the Private Acts of 1976, and Chapter 71 of the Private Acts 
of 2012, and any other acts amendatory thereto, relative to the Hospital 
Authority created to operate Baroness Erlanger Hospital, T.C. Thompson 
Children’s Hospital and other facilities, as passed by the 108th General 
Assembly of the State of Tennessee; and, 

 
WHEREAS, certain members of the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority 

Board of Trustees are appointed by the County Mayor and confirmed by the 
Board of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Mayor has reappointed Jennifer Stanley, to a term beginning 

January 18, 2015 and ending October 31, 2017 (due to there being an eight (8) 
year term limitation). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointment of Jennifer Stanley to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital 
Authority Board of Trustees is hereby confirmed for the term stated above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 115-24 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY MAYOR 
OF ONE MEMBER TO THE CARTER STREET CORPORATION BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS FOR A TERM ENDING JANUARY 5, 2019. 
 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Hamilton County Resolution No.1281-10, the chairman of the 

Carter Street Corporation Board of Directors is jointly appointed by the County 
Mayor and the Mayor of the City of Chattanooga and confirmed by the 
respective legislative bodies; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Mayor and the City Mayor have reappointed James C. Hudson, III, 

for a term beginning January 5, 2015 and ending January 5, 2019;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointment of James C. Hudson, III, as chairman of the Carter Street Corporation 
is hereby confirmed for the term as stated above; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 115-25 A 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  (P.C. NO. 2014-129) 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL PERMIT FOR A 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AT 8246 ROY LANE 

 
 WHEREAS, Pratt Land Development petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton 
County Regional Planning Commission to grant a Special Permit for a Planned Unit 
Development at 8246 Roy Lane, and said Planning Commission after hearing 
recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Pratt Land Development requested that the County Commission 
consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general 
circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing 
on January 21, 2015, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, 
and such having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended 
granting a Special Permit for a Planned Unit Development at 8246 Roy Lane. Lot 1 of the 
Varnell Glen Phase One, Plat Book 82, Page 175, ROHC, being the property described in 
Deed Book 10311, Page 796, ROHC.  Tax Map 104-013.21 as shown on the attached map. 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 

















No. 115-25 B 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  (P.C. NO. 2014-129) 
 

 
A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL PERMIT FOR A 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AT 8246 ROY LANE 
 
 WHEREAS, Pratt Land Development petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton 
County Regional Planning Commission to grant a Special Permit for a Planned Unit 
Development at 8246 Roy Lane, and said Planning Commission after hearing 
recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Pratt Land Development requested that the County Commission 
consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general 
circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing 
on January 21, 2015, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, 
and such having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended 
granting a Special Permit for a Planned Unit Development at 8246 Roy Lane, subject to:  1) 
50-foot right-of-way; 2) 26 feet of pavement width; 3) Submittal of revised flood study; 
4) Hamilton County Engineer’s office review of development plans; 5) Maximum 
number of single family homes not to exceed 50; 6) Only single-family homes to be 
constructed; 7) Sidewalks to be constructed within the development; 8) A minimum of 
35% (or 8.77 acres) of this development to be set aside for open space areas and/or 
community lots; 9) All retention ponds, entrance sign(s) and community lots shall be 
maintained by a Homeowner’s Association; and 10) A flood study shall be conducted 
by the applicant to FEMA standards and requirements that determine at a minimum, 
the pre-construction and post-construction 100-year flood elevations. Lot 1 of the 
Varnell Glen Phase One, Plat Book 82, Page 175, ROHC, being the property described in 
Deed Book 10311, Page 796, ROHC.  Tax Map 104-013.21 as shown on the attached map. 
 



 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 

















No. 115-26 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

(P.C. NO. 2014-137) 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM M-1 INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT, A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND R-5 SINGLE 

WIDE MANUFACTURED HOME DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE 
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 
6114, 6116, 6118, 6126, 6130, 6136, 6236, 6244, 6246, 6254, & 

6280 OOLTEWAH-GEORGETOWN ROAD 
 
 WHEREAS, Barrier Properties, LLC/Barry Payne petitioned the Chattanooga-
Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to rezone from M-1 Industrial 
District, A-1 Agricultural District and R-5 Single Wide Manufactured Home District to 
R-1 Single Family Residential District, properties located at 6114, 6116, 6118, 6126, 
6130, 6136, 6236, 6244, 6246, 6254, & 6280 Ooltewah-Georgetown Road, and said 
Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Barrier Properties, LLC/Barry Payne requested that the County 
Commission consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in 
general circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public 
hearing on January 21, 2015, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required 
by law, and such having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to 
rezone from M-1 Industrial District, A-1 Agricultural District and R-5 Single Wide 
Manufactured Home District to R-1 Single Family Residential District, properties located at 
6114, 6116, 6118, 6126, 6130, 6136, 6236, 6244, 6246, 6254, & 6280 Ooltewah-Georgetown 
Road.  Beginning at the northeast corner of Tax Map 132A-A-026.02 and going southwest 
580 feet, thence northwest 483 feet, thence southwest 265 feet, thence south 406 feet, 
thence southeast 293 feet, thence southwest 3180 feet, thence northwest 1038 feet, thence 
northeast 1066 feet, thence northwest 253 feet, thence northeast 300 feet, thence southeast 
252 feet, thence northeast 100 feet, thence northwest 252 feet, thence northeast 300 feet, 
thence southeast 258 feet, thence northeast 1240 feet, thence northwest 323 feet, thence 



 

 

north 478 feet, thence southeast 252 feet, thence northeast 911 feet, thence southeast 1207 
feet to the point of beginning, being the properties described in Deed Book 9730, Page 954, 
ROHC, along with three unplatted tracts of land described in Deed Book 6604, Page 375, 
ROHC, except for 0.04± acres of Tax Map 132A-A-026 to be deeded as R.O.W. to Hamilton 
County as shown on the Preliminary Site Plan, and part of the property described in Deed 
Book 6604, Page 380, ROHC.  Tax Maps 132A-A-006, 007, 008, 010, 010.01, 010.02, 021, 
026 (part), and 026.01 (part), and 026.02 as shown on the attached map.   
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 

















No. 115-27 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

(P.C. NO. 2014-138) 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS PERMIT 
FOR A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ON 
PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 6114, 6116, 6118, 6126, 6130, 

6136, 6236, 6244, 6246, 6254, & 6280 OOLTEWAH-
GEORGETOWN ROAD 

 
 WHEREAS, Barrier Properties, LLC/Barry Payne petitioned the Chattanooga-
Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to grant a Special Exceptions Permit 
for a Residential Planned Unit Development on Properties located at 6114, 6116, 
6118, 6126, 6130, 6136, 6236, 6244, 6246, 6254, & 6280 Ooltewah-Georgetown 
Road, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be 
approved; and 
 WHEREAS, Barrier Properties, LLC/Barry Payne requested that the County 
Commission consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in 
general circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public 
hearing on January 21, 2015, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required 
by law, and such having been held. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to rezone from granting a Special Exceptions Permit for a Residential 
Planned Unit Development on Properties located at 6114, 6116, 6118, 6126, 6130, 
6136, 6236, 6244, 6246, 6254, & 6280 Ooltewah-Georgetown Road.  Beginning at the 
northeast corner of Tax Map 132A-A-026.02 and going southwest 580 feet, thence 
northwest 483 feet, thence southwest 265 feet, thence south 406 feet, thence 
southeast 293 feet, thence southwest 3180 feet, thence northwest 1038 feet, thence 
northeast 1066 feet, thence northwest 253 feet, thence northeast 300 feet, thence 
southeast 252 feet, thence northeast 100 feet, thence northwest 252 feet, thence 
northeast 300 feet, thence southeast 258 feet, thence northeast 1240 feet, thence 
northwest 323 feet, thence north 478 feet, thence southeast 252 feet, thence 
northeast 911 feet, thence southeast 1207 feet to the point of beginning, being the 



 

 

properties described in Deed Book 9730, Page 954, ROHC, along with three 
unplatted tracts of land described in Deed Book 6604, Page 375, ROHC, except for 
0.04± acres of Tax Map 132A-A-026 to be deeded as R.O.W. to Hamilton County as 
shown on the Preliminary Site Plan, and part of the property described in Deed Book 
6604, Page 380, ROHC.  Tax Maps 132A-A-006, 007, 008, 010, 010.01, 010.02, 021, 
026 (part), and 026.01 (part), and 026.02 as shown on the attached map.  
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 



















No. 115-28 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

(P.C. NO. MR-2014-141) 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING THE ABANDONMENT 
OF AN UNNAMED RIGHT-OF-WAY OFF OF THE 

6200 BLOCK OF OOLTEWAH-GEORGETOWN ROAD 
 
 WHEREAS, Barrier Properties, LLC/Barry Payne petitioned the Chattanooga-
Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission granting the abandonment of an 
Unnamed Right-Of-Way off of the 6200 Block of Ooltewah-Georgetown Road, and 
said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Barrier Properties, LLC/Barry Payne requested that the County 
Commission consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in 
general circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public 
hearing on January 21, 2015, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required 
by law, and such having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to 
grant the abandonment of an Unnamed Right-Of-Way off of the 6200 Block of Ooltewah-
Georgetown Road.  Abandonment of part of an unnamed R.O.W.  off of the 6200 Block of 
Ooltewah-Georgetown Road, beginning at the southwest corner of Tax Map 132A-A-026 and 
going approximately 140 feet northeast to the north line of said R.O.W., thence 258 feet 
southeast to the northeast corner of Tax Map 132A-A-026.  Tax Maps 132A-A-021 & 026 as 
shown on the attached map.  
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 115-29 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE HAMILTON COUNTY ZONING 
REGULATIONS, ARTICLE V GENERAL PROVISIONS SECTION 
105(3)(b) TO CLARIFY THE “EFFECTIVE DATE” MENTIONED IN 

THE TEXT 
 
 WHEREAS, there is a proposal to amend the Hamilton County Zoning 
Regulations to clarify “effective date” mention in the text of Article V General 
Provisions Section 105(3)(b), and said Planning Commission after hearing 
recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 WHEREAS, notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in 
Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on January 
21, 2015, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such 
having been held. 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended as 
follows: 
 
 Article V, Section 105(3)(b) be deleted in its entirety and replaced in lieu 
thereof with the following: 
 (b) Easements or rights-of-way which were established and 

existing prior to October 18, 1978 (Resolution 1078-47) may be 
acceptable in spite of width if, in the opinion of the Director of 
Building Inspection, the pre-existing easement as described by 
deed or other legal instrument will provide safe and adequate 
access to the property in question at no expense or potential 
damage to the public welfare. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 





No. 115-30 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A CONTINUATION CONTRACT BETWEEN THE 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND THE HAMILTON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
TO PROVIDE TWO (2) SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS FOR TWO YEARS, BETWEEN 
JULY 1, 2014 AND JUNE 30, 2016 AND TO AMEND THE SHERIFF’S BUDGET. 
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office will provide a total of two officers, one at Orchard Knob 
Middle School and one at Hixson Middle School; 
  
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Line Item Patrol Revenue Budget from the Department of Education 
will be increased by $2,809 from the current $112,370 to $115,179 to match the amount of the 
contract between the two parties mentioned above.  Correspondingly, the Sheriff’s Line Item 
Patrol Expense Budget for Uniform Expenses will be increased by $2,809 as well; 
 
 Whereas, the county legislative body deems the placement of said officers at these schools 
and the security that their presence affords to be in the best interests of the citizens of 
Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
The contract is approved and accepted between the Sheriff’s Office and the Hamilton County 
Department of Education, and to amend the Sheriff’s Revenue and Expense budget by an increase of 
$2,809 for each. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLICE WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 115-31 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO APPLY FOR A CLEAN 
ENERGY GRANT SPONSORED BY THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION THAT WILL PAY HALF THE COST OF A 
LIGHTING SYSTEM UPGRADE IN THE COURTS BUILDING THAT IS ESTIMATED 
TO COST $401,056. 
 
 
WHEREAS,  The current lighting system is in need of an upgrade to replace obsolete 

components, to improve the functionality of the system and to become more 
energy efficient; and,  

 
WHEREAS,  The system upgrade would include new energy efficient fluorescent fixtures, 

ballasts and lamps, LEDs in certain areas and motion sensors to dim lights 
when not in use; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  The Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC) offers a 

Clean Energy Grant Program to county governments and other eligible entities 
to assist with projects that result in the reduction of emissions and pollutants;  
and, 

 
WHEREAS, The estimated cost for this project is $401,056, which includes the $200,528 

match which the County will pay with Bond Funds; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  The system upgrade will save energy, reduce pollutants, save on maintenance 

costs and pay for itself in 3.6 years by saving $62,558 in energy costs annually; 
and 

  
 
 
 



 

 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

 
The County Mayor is hereby authorized to apply for a Clean Energy Grant 
sponsored by the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation that 
will pay half the cost of a lighting system upgrade in the Courts Building that is 
estimated to cost $401,056.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 115-32 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN A CONTINUATION 
CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HAMILTON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
2015-2018 CONTRACT PERIOD, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $39,300.00 ($13,100.00 
PER YEAR) TO PROVIDE CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH PREVENTION OF CHILDHOOD LEAD POISONING PROGRAM 
GUIDELINES. 
 
WHEREAS, to carry out the Department of Health’s responsibility in the implementation of 

the Prevention of Childhood Lead Poisoning Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, when medically necessary, home visits are made to children with Elevated 

Blood Lead Levels (EBLL) to educate care-givers about dangers of lead 
poisoning, sources of lead, and prevention techniques; and 

 
WHEREAS, the State has agreed to provide $39,300.00 ($13,100.00 per year) for the 

provision of these Case Management services; and 
 
WHEREAS,  this program and service is for the health and well-being of the citizens of 

Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached contract for the July 

1, 2015 – June 30, 2018 contract period in an amount not to exceed 
$39,300.00. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 



08-21-14-GU 

 

 

 

C O N T R AC T  
(fee-for-service contract with a federal or Tennessee local or quasi -governmental entity) 

Begin Date End Date Agency Tracking # Edison Record ID 

July 1, 2015 June 30, 2018 34360-40016       

Contractor Legal Entity Name Edison Vendor ID 

Chattanooga-Hamilton Health Department 4208 

Subrecipient or Vendor CFDA # 

 Subrecipient    Vendor 93.994 

Service Caption (one line only) 

Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program (CLPPP) 

Funding — 

FY State Federal Interdepartmental Other TOTAL Contract Amount 

2016       $13,100             $13,100 

2017       $13,100             $13,100 

2018       $13,100             $13,100 

                                   

                                   

TOTAL:       $39,300             $39,300 

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Funding:        YES     NO 

Budget Officer Confirmation:  There is a balance in the 
appropriation from which obligations hereunder are required to 
be paid that is not already encumbered to pay other 
obligations. 

OCR USE - GU 

Speed Chart (optional) Account Code (optional) 

HL00007860 70899000 

 



 

1 

 

 

CONTRACT 
BETWEEN THE STATE OF TENNESSEE, 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH &  
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

 
This Contract, by and then between the State of Tennessee, the Department of Health, hereinafter 
referred to as the “State” and Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department, hereinafter referred to 
as the “Contractor,” is for the Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program (CLPPP), as further defined 
in the “SCOPE OF SERVICES.”   
 
Contractor Edison Registration ID #4208 

 
A. SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

 A.1. The Contractor shall provide all service and deliverables as required, described, and         
detailed herein and shall meet all service and delivery timelines as specified by this 
 Contract. 

 
A.2.  Service Definitions. 

 
a.  CLPPP means Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program.  

             
b. EBLL means Elevated Blood Lead Level. 
 
c. LeadTrk is a web based program used to input information on blood lead.           
 
d. > 20ug/dl means greater than or equal to Micrograms per deciliter 

            
A.3. Service Goals. 

  a. To educate the public regarding the effects of lead poisoning.  

  b. To provide case management for children with lead poisoning. 

  c. To reduce the number of children affected by lead poisoning.  
 

A.4.  Service Recipients. 
  

Citizens of Tennessee and children ages six (6) months to one hundred ninety-two (192) 
             Months who have EBLL.  

 
A.5.  Service Description. 

 
a. The Contractor agrees to conduct case-management of all children in Hamilton  

County ages six (6) months to one hundred ninety-two (192) months with EBLL 
  above the norm.  The case-management services shall include: 
 

1) Educate caregivers about the dangers of lead poisoning, sources of lead       
and prevention techniques; 

 
2) Discuss and plan needed related services such as additional blood tests, 

investigation of lead source, home cleanup, temporary shelter, 
relocation, healthy food, lead-safe household items, and medical care. 

 
3) Input blood lead case management notes into the LeadTrk program; 

 
4) When medically necessary, conduct a home visit to educate caregivers  

and discuss plans for lead related services



08-21-14-GU 

 

2 

 
 

b. Arrange transportation through public providers for a child with EBLL or his/her  
caregiver to: Lead-related medical services or a lead safe environment, or social  
services agencies to provide assistance related to lead poisoning. 

 
c. Refer to appropriate agencies to assure goods and services necessary to protect     

a child with EBLL are available or are provided (such as home cleaning supplies,  
               temporary shelter, relocation, healthy food, lead-safe household items, especially  
               those used in cooking, eating, and food storage or replacement of a child’s  
               contaminated toys); 
 
  d. Promote childhood lead screening and lead poisoning prevention by: 
 

1) Participating in meetings and projects with public and private    
groups/agencies where lead screening can be promoted to improve 
childhood lead screening rates when appropriate. 

 
2) Participating in meetings and projects with public and private social 

services agencies related to housing, transportation, or nutrition to 
coordinate or improve services for children with EBLL to provide more 
lead-safe environments for children when appropriates; 

 
3) Conducting health education for professionals or public as needed, 

regarding any aspects of the CLPPP. 
 

e. When requested, attend and participate in the meetings/conferences and 
projects with Tennessee CLPPP and other state, public or private agencies 
where lead screening can be promoted to improve childhood lead screen rates 
when requested. 

 
 A.6.  Service Reporting. 
 
  The Contractor shall report the following to the State and the University of Tennessee  
  CLPPP manager as follows: 
 

a. Report monthly, by electronic transmission confirmed blood lead levels of all 
presumed positives to the CLPPP nurse consultant and keep her informed of the 
progress of any active cases >5 mg/dl; 

 
b. By the 15

th
 of each month after the end of each quarter, submit to the State 

quarterly reports as detailed in the format attached herein as Attachment 1; 
 

c. Provide and annual report including both educational/promotional activities and 
summary status of the Scope of Services activities by the 15

th
 day of July 

following the end of each fiscal year. 
 

 A.7. Service Deliverables. 
 

 
 

Deliverable 

 
Contract 
Section 

 
 

Delivery 
Date 

 
 

Due to Whom? 

 
Requested 

Format 

Educate caregivers 
on lead poisoning 

A.5.a.1. Throughout 
the term of 
the contract 

Individuals as 
approved by the 
State 

In Person, 
Electronically, and 
other format as 
requested. 



08-21-14-GU 

 

3 

 
 

Deliverable 

 
Contract 
Section 

 
 

Delivery 
Date 

 
 

Due to Whom? 

 
Requested 

Format 

Discuss and plan 
needed related 
services (testing, 
cleanup, etc.) 

A.5.a.2. 
 

As requested Individuals as 
approved by the 
State 

In Person 

 
Input blood lead 
case management 
into LeadTrk 
 

 
A.5.a.3. 

 
Throughout 
the term of 
the contract 

 
LeadTRK 

On site, Web 
based, print 
material and other 
formats as 
requested 

When medically 
necessary, conduct 
home visits to 
educate, draw 
blood and discuss 
services 

A.5.a.4. To Be 
Determined 

As requested  To Be Determined 

Arrange 
transportation for a 
child with EBLL 
and goods and 
services necessary 
to protect them 
 

A.5.b. & 
A.5.c. 
 

As Needed As requested In Person, 
Electronically and 
other format 
requested 

Participate in 
meetings and 
projects with public 
and private groups 
to promote lead 
screening 
 

A.5.d. Throughout 
the term of 
the contract 

Public and 
private agencies 
or groups 

In person  

Conducting and 
participating in 
health education in 
any aspect of the 
CLPPP to improve 
childhood lead 
screen rates 
 

A.5.d. & 
A.5.e. 

As requested Labs and 
physicians 

To Be Determined 

 
A.8. Inspection and Acceptance.  Acceptance of the work outlined above will be made by the 

State or its authorized representative through reports, teleconferences, site visits and/or 
other periodic reviews. The State will make the final determination in terms of acceptance 
of the work being performed under this Contract.  All “To Be Determined” instances 
mentioned in the document shall be proposed by the Contractor and accepted by the 
State.  

 
B. TERM OF CONTRACT: 
   
 This Contract shall be effective on July 1, 2015 (“Effective Date”), and extend for a period of 

Thirty Six (36) months after the Effective Date (“Term”).  The State shall have no obligation for 
goods or services provided by the Contractor prior to the Effective Date. 

 
C. PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:   
 
C.1. Maximum Liability.  In no event shall the maximum liability of the State under this Contract 

exceed Thirty Nine Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($39,300.00). The payment rates in section 



08-21-14-GU 

 

4 

C.3 shall constitute the entire compensation due the Contractor for all service and Contractor 
obligations hereunder regardless of the difficulty, materials or equipment required.  The payment 
rates include, but are not limited to, all applicable taxes, fees, overheads, and all other direct and 
indirect costs incurred or to be incurred by the Contractor. 
 
The Contractor is not entitled to be paid the maximum liability for any period under the Contract or 
any extensions of the Contract for work not requested by the State.  The maximum liability 
represents available funds for payment to the Contractor and does not guarantee payment of any 
such funds to the Contractor under this Contract unless the State requests work and the 
Contractor performs said work.  In which case, the Contractor shall be paid in accordance with 
the payment rates detailed in section C.3.  The State is under no obligation to request work from 
the Contractor in any specific dollar amounts or to request any work at all from the Contractor 
during any period of this Contract. 

 
C.2. Compensation Firm.  The payment rates and the maximum liability of the State under this 

Contract are firm for the duration of the Contract and are not subject to escalation for any reason 
unless amended. 

 
C.3. Payment Methodology.  The Contractor shall be compensated based on the payment rates herein 

for units of service authorized by the State in a total amount not to exceed the Contract Maximum 
Liability established in section C.1.   

 
a. The Contractor’s compensation shall be contingent upon the satisfactory completion of 

units, milestones, or increments of service defined in section A.   
 

b. The Contractor shall be compensated for said units, milestones, or increments of service 
based upon the following payment rates:  

 

Service Description 
Amount * 

(per compensable increment) 

Submission of Quarterly Report: July - 
September  

$3,275  

Submission of Quarterly Report:  October - 
December 

$3,275 

Submission of Quarterly Report: January – 
March  

$3,275 

Submission of Quarterly Report: April – June, 
and the Annual Report: July - June 

$3,275 

 
* NOTICE:  The amount(s) per compensable increment detailed above shall be 
contingent upon the State’s receipt of an invoice (Attachment 2) (as required in section 
C.5., below) for said service(s) within forty-five (45) days after the end of the calendar 
month in which the service(s) were rendered.  At the sole discretion of the State, the 
amount per compensable increment of any service for which the State receives an 
invoice later than prescribed herein shall be subject to a reduction in amount of up to 
100%.  In the case of an untimely invoice, before any payment will be considered by the 
State, the Contractor must submit a written request regarding the untimely invoice, which 
shall detail the reason the invoices is untimely as well as the Contractor’s plan for 
submitting all future invoices no later than prescribed herein, and it must be signed by an 
individual empowered to bind the Contractor to this Contract. 

 
C.4. Travel Compensation.  The Contractor shall not be compensated or reimbursed for travel, meals, 

or lodging. 
 
C.5. Invoice Requirements. The Contractor shall invoice the State only for completed increments of 

service and for the amount stipulated in section C.3, above, and present said invoices no more 



08-21-14-GU 

 

5 

often than monthly, with all necessary supporting documentation, to: 
 

 By email: Debbie.Osborne@tn.gov 
  
 By regular mail:  
  
 Debbie Osborne 
 Division of Family Health and Wellness 
 Tennessee Department of Health 
 8

th
 Floor, Andrew Johnson Tower 

 710 James Robertson Parkway 
 Nashville, TN 37243 

 
a. Each invoice shall clearly and accurately detail all of the following required information 

(calculations must be extended and totaled correctly). 
 

(1) Invoice Number (assigned by the Contractor) 
(2) Invoice Date 
(3) Contract Number (assigned by the State) 
(4) Customer Account Name: Department of Health & Family Health and Wellness.  
(5) Customer Account Number (assigned by the Contractor to the above-referenced 

Customer) 
(6) Contractor Name 
(7) Contractor Tennessee Edison Registration ID Number Referenced in Preamble 

of this Contract 
(8) Contractor Contact for Invoice Questions (name, phone, and/or fax) 
(9) Contractor Remittance Address 
(10) Description of Delivered Service  
(11) Complete Itemization of Charges, which shall detail the following:  
 

i. Service or Milestone Description (including name & title as applicable) of 
each service invoiced 

ii. Number of Completed Units, Increments, Hours, or Days as applicable, 
of each service invoiced 

iii. Applicable Payment Rate (as stipulated in Section C.3.) of each service 
invoiced 

iv. Amount Due by Service 
v. Total Amount Due for the invoice period 

 
b. The Contractor understands and agrees that an invoice under this Contract shall: 
 

(1) include only charges for service described in Contract Section A and in 
accordance with payment terms and conditions set forth in Contract Section C;  

(2) only be submitted for completed service and shall not include any charge for 
future work; 

(3) not include sales tax or shipping charges; and 
(4) initiate the timeframe for payment (and any discounts) only when the State is in 

receipt of the invoice, and the invoice meets the minimum requirements of this 
section C.5. 

 
C.6. Payment of Invoice.  A payment by the State shall not prejudice the State's right to object to or 

question any payment, invoice, or matter in relation thereto.  A payment by the State shall not be 
construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided or as approval of any 
amount invoiced.   

 
C.7. Invoice Reductions.  The Contractor's invoice shall be subject to reduction for amounts included 

in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by the State, on the basis of 
audits conducted in accordance with the terms of this Contract, not to constitute proper 
remuneration for compensable services.   

mailto:Debbie.Osborne@tn.gov


08-21-14-GU 

 

6 

 
C.8. Deductions.  The State reserves the right to deduct from amounts, which are or shall become due 

and payable to the Contractor under this or any contract between the Contractor and the State of 
Tennessee any amounts, which are or shall become due and payable to the State of Tennessee 
by the Contractor. 

 
C.9. Prerequisite Documentation.  The Contractor shall not invoice the State under this Contract until 

the State has received the following documentation properly completed.   
 

a. The Contractor shall complete, sign, and present to the State an "Authorization 
Agreement for Automatic Deposit (ACH Credits) Form" provided by the State.  By doing 
so, the Contractor acknowledges and agrees that, once said form is received by the 
State, all payments to the Contractor, under this or any other contract the Contractor has 
with the State of Tennessee shall be made by Automated Clearing House (ACH). 

 
b. The Contractor shall complete, sign, and present to the State a "Substitute W-9 Form” 

provided by the State.  The taxpayer identification number detailed by said form must 
agree with the Contractor's Federal Employer Identification Number or Tennessee Edison 
Registration ID referenced in this Contract.   

 
D. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 
D.1. Required Approvals.  The State is not bound by this Contract until it is signed by the contract 

parties and approved by appropriate officials in accordance with applicable Tennessee laws and 
regulations (depending upon the specifics of this contract, said officials may include, but are not 
limited to, the Commissioner of Finance and Administration, the Commissioner of Human 
Resources, and the Comptroller of the Treasury). 

 
D.2. Modification and Amendment.  This Contract may be modified only by a written amendment 

signed by all parties hereto and approved by both the officials who approved the base contract 
and, depending upon the specifics of the contract as amended, any additional officials required by 
Tennessee laws and regulations (said officials may include, but are not limited to, the 
Commissioner of Finance and Administration, the Commissioner of Human Resources, and the 
Comptroller of the Treasury). 

 
D.3. Termination for Convenience.  The State may terminate this Contract without cause for any 

reason.  Said termination shall not be deemed a breach of contract by the State.  The State shall 
give the Contractor at least thirty (30) days written notice before the effective termination date.  
The Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for satisfactory, authorized service completed as 
of the termination date, but in no event shall the State be liable to the Contractor for 
compensation for any service which has not been rendered.   Upon such termination, the 
Contractor shall have no right to any actual general, special, incidental, consequential, or any 
other damages whatsoever of any description or amount. 

 
D.4. Termination for Cause.  If the Contractor fails to properly perform its obligations under this 

Contract in a timely or proper manner, or if the Contractor violates any terms of this Contract, the 
State shall have the right to immediately terminate the Contract and withhold payments in excess 
of fair compensation for completed services.  Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor shall not 
be relieved of liability to the State for damages sustained by virtue of any breach of this Contract 
by the Contractor. 

 
D.5. Subcontracting.  The Contractor shall not assign this Contract or enter into a subcontract for any 

of the services performed under this Contract without obtaining the prior written approval of the 
State.  If such subcontracts are approved by the State, each shall contain, at a minimum, sections 
of this Contract below pertaining to "Conflicts of Interest," "Nondiscrimination," and “Records” (as 
identified by the section headings).  Notwithstanding any use of approved subcontractors, the 
Contractor shall be the prime contractor and shall be responsible for all work performed. 

 



08-21-14-GU 

 

7 

D.6. Conflicts of Interest.  The Contractor warrants that no part of the total Contract Amount shall be 
paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of the State of Tennessee as wages, 
compensation, or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee, subcontractor, or 
consultant to the Contractor in connection with any work contemplated or performed relative to 
this Contract.  

 
D.7. Nondiscrimination.  The Contractor hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person shall be 

excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination 
in the performance of this Contract or in the employment practices of the Contractor on the 
grounds of handicap or disability, age, race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or any other 
classification protected by Federal, Tennessee State constitutional, or statutory law.  The 
Contractor shall, upon request, show proof of such nondiscrimination and shall post in 
conspicuous places, available to all employees and applicants, notices of nondiscrimination. 

 
D.8. Records.  The Contractor shall maintain documentation for all charges under this Contract.  The 

books, records, and documents of the Contractor, insofar as they relate to work performed or 
money received under this Contract, shall be maintained for a period of three (3) full years from 
the date of the final payment and shall be subject to audit at any reasonable time and upon 
reasonable notice by the State, the Comptroller of the Treasury, or their duly appointed 
representatives.  The financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

 
D.9. Prevailing Wage Rates.  All contracts for construction, erection, or demolition or to install goods 

or materials that involve the expenditure of any funds derived from the State require compliance 
with the prevailing wage laws as provided in Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 12-4-401 et 
seq.. 

 
D.10. Monitoring.  The Contractor’s activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to this 

Contract shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by the State, the Comptroller of the 
Treasury, or their duly appointed representatives. 

 
D.11. Progress Reports.  The Contractor shall submit brief, periodic, progress reports to the State as 

requested. 
 
D.12. Strict Performance.  Failure by any party to this Contract to insist in any one or more cases upon 

the strict performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this Contract 
shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such term, covenant, condition, or 
provision.  No term or condition of this Contract shall be held to be waived, modified, or deleted 
except by a written amendment signed by the parties hereto. 

 
D.13. Independent Contractor.  The parties hereto, in the performance of this Contract, shall not act as 

employees, partners, joint venturers, or associates of one another.  It is expressly acknowledged 
by the parties hereto that such parties are independent contracting entities and that nothing in this 
Contract shall be construed to create a employer/employee relationship or to allow either to 
exercise control or direction over the manner or method by which the other transacts its business 
affairs or provides its usual services.  The employees or agents of one party shall not be deemed 
or construed to be the employees or agents of the other party for any purpose whatsoever. 
 
The Contractor, being a Tennessee governmental entity, is governed by the provisions of the 
Tennessee Government Tort Liability Act, Tennessee Code Annotated, Sections 29-20-101 et 
seq., for causes of action sounding in tort.  Further, no contract provision requiring a Tennessee 
political entity to indemnify or hold harmless the State beyond the liability imposed by law is 
enforceable because it appropriates public money and nullifies governmental immunity without 
the authorization of the General Assembly. 

 
D.14. State Liability.  The State shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this Contract. 
 



08-21-14-GU 

 

8 

D.15. Force Majeure.  The obligations of the parties to this Contract are subject to prevention by causes 
beyond the parties’ control that could not be avoided by the exercise of due care including, but 
not limited to, natural disasters, riots, wars, epidemics, or any other similar cause. 

 
D.16. State and Federal Compliance.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable State and Federal 

laws and regulations in the performance of this Contract. 
 
D.17. Governing Law.  This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 

of the State of Tennessee.  The Contractor agrees that it will be subject to the exclusive 
jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Tennessee in actions that may arise under this Contract.  
The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that any rights or claims against the State of 
Tennessee or its employees hereunder, and any remedies arising therefrom, shall be subject to 
and limited to those rights and remedies, if any, available under Tennessee Code Annotated, 
Sections 9-8-101 through 9-8-407. 

 
D.18. Completeness.  This Contract is complete and contains the entire understanding between the 

parties relating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the terms and conditions of 
the parties’ agreement.  This Contract supersedes any and all prior understandings, 
representations, negotiations, and agreements between the parties relating hereto, whether 
written or oral. 

 
D.19. Severability.  If any terms and conditions of this Contract are held to be invalid or unenforceable 

as a matter of law, the other terms and conditions hereof shall not be affected thereby and shall 
remain in full force and effect.  To this end, the terms and conditions of this Contract are declared 
severable. 

 
D.20. Headings.  Section headings of this Contract are for reference purposes only and shall not be 

construed as part of this Contract. 
 
E. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 
E.1. Conflicting Terms and Conditions.  Should any of these special terms and conditions conflict with 

any other terms and conditions of this Contract, these special terms and conditions shall control.  
 
E.2. Communications and Contacts.  All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other 

communications required or contemplated by this Contract shall be in writing and shall be made 
by certified, first class mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid, by overnight courier 
service with an asset tracking system, or by EMAIL or facsimile transmission with recipient 
confirmation.  Any such communications, regardless of method of transmission, shall be 
addressed to the respective party at the appropriate mailing address, facsimile number, or EMAIL 
address as set forth below or to that of such other party or address, as may be hereafter specified 
by written notice. 
 
The State: 
 
Pam Isom, Program Director for Pediatric Case Management and Follow Up 
Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program 

 Division of Family Health and Wellness 
Tennessee Department of Health 
8

th
 Floor, Andrew Johnson Tower 

710 James Robertson Parkway 
Nashville, TN 37243 
Email: pam.isom@tn.gov 
Telephone # (615) 532-8144 
FAX # (615) 741-1063 
 
The Contractor: 
 
Rebekah Barnes, Administrator 

mailto:pam.isom@tn.gov


08-21-14-GU 

 

9 

Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department 
921 East Third Street 
Chattanooga, Tennessee  37403 
Email Address:  beckyB@HamiltonTN.gov 
Telephone:  (423) 209-8000 
Fax:  (423)209-8001 
 

 All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other communications shall be considered 
effectively given upon receipt or recipient confirmation as may be required. 

 
E.3. Subject to Funds Availability.  The Contract is subject to the appropriation and availability of State 

and/or Federal funds.  In the event that the funds are not appropriated or are otherwise 
unavailable, the State reserves the right to terminate the Contract upon written notice to the 
Contractor.  Said termination shall not be deemed a breach of Contract by the State.  Upon 
receipt of the written notice, the Contractor shall cease all work associated with the Contract.  
Should such an event occur, the Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for all satisfactory 
and authorized services completed as of the termination date.  Upon such termination, the 
Contractor shall have no right to recover from the State any actual, general, special, incidental, 
consequential, or any other damages whatsoever of any description or amount. 

 
E.4.  Confidentiality of Records. Strict standards of confidentiality of records and information shall be 

maintained in accordance with applicable state and federal law.  All material and information, 
regardless of form, medium or method of communication, provided to the Contractor by the 
State or acquired by the Contractor on behalf of the State shall be regarded as confidential 
information in accordance with the provisions of applicable state and federal law, state and 
federal rules and regulations, departmental policy, and ethical standards.  Such confidential 
information shall not be disclosed, and all necessary steps shall be taken by the Contractor to 
safeguard the confidentiality of such material or information in conformance with applicable 
state and federal law, state and federal rules and regulations, departmental policy, and ethical 
standards. 
 
The Contractor’s obligations under this section do not apply to information in the public domain; 
entering the public domain but not from a breach by the Contractor of this Contract; previously 
possessed by the Contractor without written obligations to the State to protect it; acquired by the 
Contractor without written restrictions against disclosure from a third party which, to the 
Contractor’s knowledge, is free to disclose the information; independently developed by the 
Contractor without the use of the State’s information; or, disclosed by the State to others without 
restrictions against disclosure. Nothing in this paragraph shall permit Contractor to disclose any 
information that is confidential under federal or state law or regulations, regardless of whether it 
has been disclosed or made available to the Contractor due to intentional or negligent actions or 

  inactions of agents of the State or third parties. 
 
It is expressly understood and agreed the obligations set forth in this section shall survive the 
termination of this Contract. 

 
E.5. HIPAA Compliance. The State and Contractor shall comply with obligations under the Health 

Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and its accompanying regulations. 
 

a. Contractor warrants to the State that it is familiar with the requirements of HIPAA and its 
accompanying regulations, and will comply with all applicable HIPAA requirements in the 
course of this Contract. 

 
b. Contractor warrants that it will cooperate with the State, including cooperation and 

coordination with State privacy officials and other compliance officers required by HIPAA 
and its regulations, in the course of performance of the Contract so that both parties will 
be in compliance with HIPAA. 

 
 c. The State and the Contractor will sign documents, including but not limited to business 

associate agreements, as required by HIPAA and that are reasonably necessary to keep 

mailto:beckyB@HamiltonTN.gov


08-21-14-GU 

 

10 

the State and Contractor in compliance with HIPAA.  This provision shall not apply if 
information received by the State under this Contract is NOT “protected health 
information” as defined by HIPAA, or if HIPAA permits the State to receive such 
information without entering into a business associate agreement or signing another such 
document. 

 
E.6. Printing Authorization.  The Contractor agrees that no publication coming within the  
 jurisdiction of Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 12-7-101, et seq., shall be printed  
 unless a printing authorization number has been obtained and affixed as required by  
 Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 12-7-103 (d). 
 
E.7. Workpapers Subject to Review.  The Contractor shall make all audit, accounting, or financial 

analysis workpapers, notes, and other documentation available for review by the Comptroller of 
the Treasury or his representatives, upon request, during normal working hours either while the 
analysis is in progress or subsequent to the completion of this Contract. 

 
E.8. Environmental Tobacco Smoke.  Pursuant to the provisions of the federal “Pro-Children Act of 

1994” and the Tennessee “Children’s Act for Clean Indoor Air of 1995,” the Contractor shall 
prohibit smoking of tobacco products within any indoor premises in which services are provided 
pursuant to this Contract to individuals under the age of eighteen (18) years.  The Contractor 
shall post “no smoking” signs in appropriate, permanent sites within such premises.  This 

 prohibition shall be applicable during all hours, not just the hours in which children are present.  
Violators of the prohibition may be subject to civil penalties and fines.  This prohibition shall apply 
to and be made part of any subcontract related to this Contract. 

 
E.9. Debarment and Suspension.  The Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that 

it, its current and future principals, its current and future subcontractors and their principals: 
 

a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal or state department or 
agency; 

 
b. have not within a three (3) year period preceding this Contract been convicted of, or had 

a civil judgment rendered against them from commission of fraud, or a criminal offence in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or 
local) transaction or grant under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification, or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
c. are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity 

(federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses detailed in section b. of 
this certification;  and 

 
d. have not within a three (3) year period preceding this Contract had one or more public 

transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 

The Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the State if at any time it learns  that 
there was an earlier failure to disclose information or that due to changed circumstances, its principals or 
the principals of its subcontractors are excluded or disqualified. 
 
E.10. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA).  This Contract requires the 

Contractor to provide supplies and/or services that are funded in whole or in part by federal funds 
that are subject to FFATA. The Contractor is responsible for ensuring that all applicable 
requirements, including but not limited to those set forth herein, of FFATA are met and that the 
Contractor provides information to the State as required.   

 
The Contractor shall comply with the following: 

 
a. Reporting of Total Compensation of the Contractor’s Executives.  



08-21-14-GU 

 

11 

 
 (1) The Contractor shall report the names and total compensation of each of its five most 

highly compensated executives for the Contractor’s preceding completed 
   fiscal year, if in the Contractor’s preceding fiscal year it received: 

 
i. 80 percent or more of the Contractor’s annual gross revenues from 

Federal procurement contracts and Federal financial assistance subject 
to the Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR 170.320 (and subawards); 
and  

ii. $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal 
procurement contracts (and subcontracts), and Federal financial 
assistance subject to the Transparency Act (and subawards); and 

iii. The public does not have access to information about the compensation 
of the executives through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 78o(d)) 
or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. (To determine if 
the public has access to the compensation information, see the U.S. 
Security and Exchange Commission total compensation filings at 
http://www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.). 

 
Executive means officers, managing partners, or any other employees in 
management positions. 
 

(2) Total compensation means the cash and noncash dollar value earned by the 
executive during the Contractor’s preceding fiscal year and includes the following 
(for more information see 17 CFR 229.402(c)(2)):  

 
i. Salary and bonus.  
ii. Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights. Use the 

dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with 
respect to the fiscal year in accordance with the Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004) (FAS 123R), Shared 
Based Payments.  

iii. Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans. This does not 
include group life, health, hospitalization or medical reimbursement plans 
that do not discriminate in favor of executives, and are available 
generally to all salaried employees.  

iv. Change in pension value. This is the change in present value of defined 
benefit and actuarial pension plans.  

v. Above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not tax 
qualified.  

vi. Other compensation, if the aggregate value of all such other 
compensation (e.g. severance, termination payments, value of life 
insurance paid on behalf of the employee, perquisites or property) for the 
executive exceeds $10,000. 

 
b. The Contractor must report executive total compensation described above to the State by 

the end of the month during which this Contract is awarded.   
 
c. If this Contract is amended to extend its term, the Contractor must submit an executive 

total compensation report to the State by the end of the month in which the amendment 
to this Contract becomes effective. 

 
d. The Contractor will obtain a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number and 

maintain its DUNS number for the term of this Contract.  More information about 
obtaining a DUNS Number can be found at:  http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/ 

 
  The Contractor’s failure to comply with the above requirements is a material breach of this 
     Contract for which the State may terminate this Contract for cause.  The State will not be  

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/


08-21-14-GU 

 

12 

    obligated to pay any outstanding invoice received from the Contractor unless and until the  
    Contractor is in full compliance with the above requirements. 
 
E.11. CFDA Number(s).  When applicable, the Contractor shall inform its licensed independent public 

accountant of the federal regulations that are to be complied with in performance of an audit.  
This information shall consist of the following Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Numbers 
and Grant Names: 
 
 93.994 – Maternal and Child Health Block Grant 
 

E.12. Health Care Data:  The Contractor shall provide data reports about health care services provided 
under this Contract using the Department of Health’s Patient Tracking and Billing Management 
Information System (or its successor).  Data regarding health care services provided by the 
Contractor shall be coded and entered into the Patient Tracking and Billing Management 
Information System (PTBMIS), using the PTBMIS Codes Manual.  The PTBMIS Codes manual is 
available electronically at http://hsaintranet.health.tn.gov/ and email notices shall be sent to  
the Contractor regarding new revisions and/or updates, which can be accessed through the 
above-referenced website. 
 
On a schedule defined by the State, the Contractor shall submit Central Office Database Report 
(CODB) files, as defined in PTBMIS, electronically to the State. The Contractor shall also submit 
other health care data reports, as requested by the State, and in a format acceptable to the State. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 
 
 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT: 
 
 

 

CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE     DATE 
 
 
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNATORY (ABOVE) 
 
 
 
HAMILTON COUNTY GOVERNMENT: 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
GRANTEE SIGNATURE        DATE 
 
     
 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF GRANTEE SIGNATORY (above)                                  DATE 
 
 
 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH: 
 
 
 

JOHN J. DREYZEHNER, MD, MPH, FACOEM, COMMISSIONER  DATE 

 
 

http://hsaintranet.health.tn.gov/


  Attachment 1 

Hamilton County Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program Quarterly Report 

Dates of Report: 

 □  July-September 

 □  October-December 

 □  January-March 

 □  April-June 

Number of caregivers educated about lead poisoning: 

Number of children cases follow-up was provided for: 

Number of children arranged transportation for to lead-related services: 

Number of children assisted with finding services necessary to protect a child with 
EBLL: 

Number of home visits conducted to children with EBLL’s: 

Number of people provided lead poisoning educational materials: 

Number of meetings attended with social service agencies to coordinate services for 

children with EBLL’s: 

Number of meetings attended to promote lead screening: 

List the names of the meetings attended to promote lead screening: 

List any conferences and projects with Tennessee CLPPP and other state, public and 
private agencies where lead screening was promoted: 

 

List and briefly describe at least one success during this quarter: 

List and briefly describe a barrier (if there has been any) or challenge: 

Other (any information that you would like to provide): 



NAME AND REMITTANCE ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR/GRANTEE   

INVOICE NUMBER  

INVOICE DATE  

INVOICE PERIOD  
FROM TO

CONTRACTING STATE AGENCY   CONTRACT PERIOD   

FROM TO

PROGRAM AREA   

EDISON CONTRACT NUMBER   CONTACT PERSON/TELEPHONE NO.   

OCR CONTRACT NUMBER  

 

USERCODE:

PROJECT ID:

AMOUNT:

SPEEDCHART NUMBER:  

USERCODE:

Printing & Publications PROJECT ID:

AMOUNT:

SPEEDCHART NUMBER:  

Specific Assistance to Individuals USERCODE:

PROJECT ID:

AMOUNT:

I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the data Please check one of the following boxes

above are correct, that all expenditures were made in These services are for medical services

accordance with the contract conditions, and that payment  

is due and has not been previously requested. non-medical services

Title: Title: Title:

Date: Date: Date:

ATTACHMENT: 2

STATE OF TENNESSEE

INVOICE FOR REIMBURSEMENT

TDOH AGENCY INVOICE NUMBER (ONLY FOR FISCAL OFFICE USE)  

FEDERAL ID#   Edison Vendor #   

Tennessee Department of Health

(B)

SPEEDCHART NUMBER:  

Salaries $0.00

DUE

 

BUDGET

 

TOTAL

CONTRACT

Benefits $0.00

Professional Fee/Grant & Award $0.00

Supplies $0.00

Occupancy $0.00

Equipment Rental & Maintenance $0.00

Telephone $0.00

Postage & Shipping $0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Depreciation $0.00

Interest $0.00

Insurance

Travel/Conferences & Meetings $0.00

CONTRACTOR'S/GRANTEE'S AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE PROGRAM APPROVAL AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

TOTAL $0.00

RECOMMENDED FOR PAYMENT

CONTRACTING STATE AGENCY'S AUTHORIZED CERTIFICATION
FOR FISCAL USE ONLY

Other Non Personnel $0.00

Capital Purchase $0.00

Indirect Cost $0.00

FOR CENTRAL OFFICE USE ONLY  

(MO./DAY/YR.)

(C)

MONTHLY

EXPENDITURES

AMOUNT BILLED

YTD

USERCODE:

PROJECT ID:

BUDGET

LINE

ITEMS

AMOUNT:

(A)

SPEEDCHART NUMBER:  



No. 115-33 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO RENEW THE AGREEMENT WITH THE 
STATE OF TENNESSEE ON BEHALF OF THE TENNESSEE BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION FOR 
HAMILTON COUNTY INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES AND HAMILTON COUNTY 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
THROUGHOUT CALENDAR YEAR 2015 IN SUPPORT AND DEVELOPMENT OF SOFTWARE FOR 
THE TENNESSEE BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION NOT TO EXCEED $155,000. 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Bureau of Investigation (TBI) has need of this database and application 

for its work in this area; and 
 
WHEREAS, state wide efforts require an effective data collection, management and utilization 

system; and 
 
WHEREAS, this system has been developed and maintained by Hamilton County Information 

Technology Services and Hamilton County Geographic Information Systems; and, 
WHEREAS, in order not to interrupt the operation of this information system within the State of 

Tennessee an agreement between Hamilton County and the State of Tennessee was 
implemented in 2005; and 

 
WHEREAS, this agreement provides for this work to be done in a manner not to interfere with the 

work these two Hamilton County departments do in support of Hamilton County; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to this agreement the State of Tennessee will repay Hamilton County for all 

cost  incurred during the calendar year 2015 in the continued development, support 
and management of the this TBI information system in an amount not to exceed 
$155,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, since the cost of continued support and management of this information system is not 

budgeted and will not require any unreimbursed County support, it is necessary to 
increase the fiscal year 2015 general fund revenue and expense budgets by $155,000; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, this county legislative body deems Hamilton County’s participation in this work and in 

the funding of the information system to be vital and in the best interest of its citizens. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to renew the agreement with the State of Tennessee 
on behalf of the Tennessee Bureau of Investigation for Hamilton County Information 
Technology Services and Hamilton County Geographic Information Systems to provide 
professional services throughout calendar year 2015 in support and development of this TBI 
Information System not to exceed $155,000 and that the general fund revenue and expenditure 
budgets are amended by the same amount. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 



 

C O N T R A C T  
(fee-for-service contract with a federal or Tennessee local or quasi-governmental entity) 

Begin Date End Date Agency Tracking # Edison Record ID 

                 -            
Contractor Legal Entity Name Edison Vendor ID 

            
Subrecipient or Vendor CFDA # 

 Subrecipient    Vendor       
Service Caption (one line only) 

      

Funding — 
FY State Federal Interdepartmental Other TOTAL Contract Amount 

                                   

                                   

                                   

                                   

                                   

TOTAL:                               

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Funding:        YES     NO 

Budget Officer Confirmation:  There is a balance in the 
appropriation from which obligations hereunder are required to 
be paid that is not already encumbered to pay other 
obligations. 

OCR USE - GU 

Speed Chart (optional) Account Code (optional) 

            
 



CONTRACT 
BETWEEN THE STATE OF TENNESSEE, 

TENNESSEE BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
AND 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 
 
This Contract, by and between the State of Tennessee, Tennessee Bureau of Investigation, 
hereinafter referred to as the ‘State” and Hamilton County, Tennessee, hereinafter referred to as 
the “Contractor,” is for the provision of technological services and supplies for the Tennessee 
Methamphetamine and Pharmaceutical Task Force, as further defined in the "SCOPE OF 
SERVICES." 
 
Contractor Edison Registration ID # 4208 
 
A. SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 
A.1. The Contractor shall provide all service and deliverables as required, described, and 

detailed herein and shall meet all service and delivery timelines as specified by this 
Contract. 

 
A.2. The Contractor will provide services of the Contractor’s Information Systems Support 

Staff for the development, implementation, and support of the Tennessee 
Methamphetamine Information System (TMIS) which is a crucial element to the operation 
of the Tennessee Methamphetamine and Pharmaceutical Task Force (TMPTF).  The 
individuals that will provide support have an intimate knowledge of the system.  To 
enable the continued success of the computer system, the Contractor will continue to 
enhance the methamphetamine web-based computer system that has been created. 

A.3. The Contractor shall provide the following computer hardware and software necessary to 
operate and maintain the TMIS:  one SAN module to support Virtualization environment, 
five operating system licenses for new server installations, one Network switch to support 
server environment, one redundant intrusion prevention/detection systems, and one log 
monitoring and auditing software/hardware. 

A.4. The Contractor shall provide all repair parts and additional equipment and licenses 
required to complete this contract.  The Contractor shall provide operational equipment 
and supplies for use on TMIS. 

B. CONTRACT PERIOD: 
 
B.1 This Contract shall be effective for the period beginning January 1, 2015, and ending on 

December 31, 2015.  The Contractor hereby acknowledges and affirms that the State 
shall have no obligation for services rendered by the Contractor which were not 
performed within this specified contract period. 

 
B.2. Term Extension.  The State reserves the right to extend this Contract for an additional 

period or periods of time representing increments of no more than one year and a total 
contract term of no more than five (5) years, provided that such an extension of the 
contract term is effected prior to the current, contract expiration date by means of a 
contract amendment.  If a term extension necessitates additional funding beyond that 
which was included in the original Contract, an increase of the State’s maximum liability 
will also be effected through contract amendment, and shall be based upon payment 
rates provided in the original Contract. 

 
 



C. PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:   
 
C.1. Maximum Liability.  In no event shall the maximum liability of the State under this 

Contract exceed ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($155,000).  The 
payment rates in Section C.3 and the Travel Compensation provided in Section C.4.shall 
constitute the entire compensation due the Contractor for the Service and all of the 
Contractor's obligations hereunder regardless of the difficulty, materials or equipment 
required.  The payment rates include, but are not limited to, all applicable taxes, fees, 
overheads, and all other direct and indirect costs incurred or to be incurred by the 
Contractor. 
 
The Contractor is not entitled to be paid the maximum liability for any period under the 
Contract or any extensions of the Contract for work not requested by the State.  The 
maximum liability represents available funds for payment to the Contractor and does not 
guarantee payment of any such funds to the Contractor under this Contract unless the 
State requests work and the Contractor performs said work.  In which case, the 
Contractor shall be paid in accordance with the payment rates detailed in section C.3.  
The State is under no obligation to request work from the Contractor in any specific dollar 
amounts or to request any work at all from the Contractor during any period of this 
Contract. 

 
C.2. Compensation Firm.  The payment rates and the maximum liability of the State under this 

Contract are firm for the duration of the Contract and are not subject to escalation for any 
reason unless amended. 

 
C.3. Payment Methodology.  The Contractor shall be compensated based on the payment 

rates herein for units of service authorized by the State in a total amount not to exceed 
the Contract Maximum Liability established in section C.1.   

 
a. The Contractor’s compensation shall be contingent upon the satisfactory 

completion of units, milestones, or increments of service defined in section A.   
 

b. The Contractor shall be compensated for said units, milestones, or increments of 
service based upon the following payment rates:  

 
  Title Hourly Rate  
Services of  APPLICATION DEVELOPMENT MGR $75.15 
Services of  GIS ANALYST $45.92 
Services of  GIS MANAGER $58.05 
Services of  GIS SPECIALIST $42.00 
Services of  GIS SPECIALIST $41.28 
Services of  GIS SPECIALIST $41.08 
Services of  GIS SYSTEM PROGRAMMER $46.71 
Services of  GIS TECHNICIAN $33.88 
Services of  GIS TECHNICIAN $33.80 
Services of  GIS TECHNICIAN $32.90 
Services of  GIS TECHNICIAN $32.09 
Services of  ITS INVENTORY CONTROL TECH $32.25 
Services of  ITS OPERATIONS MANAGER $66.00 
Services of  MICROCOMPUTER SPECIALIST $44.16 
Services of  MICROCOMPUTER SPECIALIST $43.37 
Services of  MICROCOMPUTER SPECIALIST $43.37 



Services of  NETWORK MANAGER $65.05 
Services of  NETWORK SPECIALIST $52.12 
Services of  NETWORK SPECIALIST $50.70 
Services of  NETWORK SPECIALIST $49.07 
Services of  NETWORK SPECIALIST $48.57 
Services of  PROGRAMMER $38.34 
Services of  PROGRAMMER $36.31 
Services of  SR PROGRAMMER $42.11 
Services of  SR PROGRAMMER $42.11 
Services of  SR PROGRAMMER ANALYST $51.56 
Services of  SR PROGRAMMER ANALYST $51.56 
Services of  SYSTEM/DATABASE ARCHITECT $63.15 
Services of  SYSTEMS ANALYST $51.31 
Services of  SYSTEMS ANALYST SUPERVISOR $66.96 
Services of  SYSTEMS ANALYST SUPERVISOR $66.96 
Services of  SYSTEMS PROGRAMMER $54.76 
Services of  WEBMASTER $43.77 

Computer  Software, Hardware & Maintenance for TMTF 
applications $65,000 

   
 

  
c. The Contractor shall not be compensated for travel time to the primary location of 
service provision. 

  
C.4. Travel Compensation.  Compensation to the Contractor for travel, meals, or lodging shall 

be subject to amounts and limitations specified in the “State Comprehensive Travel 
Regulations,” as they are amended from time to time.   

 
The Contractor must include (in addition to other invoice requirements of this Contract) a 
complete itemization of travel compensation requested in accordance with and attaching 
to the invoice appropriate documentation and receipts as required by the above-
referenced "State Comprehensive Travel Regulations." 

 
C.5. Invoice Requirements. The Contractor shall invoice the State only for completed 

increments of service and for the amount stipulated in section C.3, above, and present 
said invoices no more often than monthly, with all necessary supporting documentation, 
to: 
 
Tennessee Bureau of Investigation 

 Attn: Fiscal Department 
 901 R.S. Gass Boulevard 
 Nashville, Tennessee 37216 

 
a. Each invoice shall clearly and accurately detail all of the following required 

information (calculations must be extended and totaled correctly). 
 

(1) Invoice Number (assigned by the Contractor) 
(2) Invoice Date 
(3) Contract Number (assigned by the State) 
(4) Customer Account Name:  Tennessee Bureau of Investigation, Drug 

Division 



(5) Customer Account Number (assigned by the Contractor to the above-
referenced Customer) 

(6) Contractor Name 
(7) Contractor Tennessee Edison Registration ID Number Referenced in 

Preamble of this Contract 
(8) Contractor Contact for Invoice Questions (name, phone, and/or fax) 
(9) Contractor Remittance Address 
(10) Description of Delivered Service  
(11) Complete Itemization of Charges, which shall detail the following:  
 

i. Service or Milestone Description (including name & title as 
applicable) of each service invoiced 

ii. Number of Completed Units, Increments, Hours, or Days as 
applicable, of each service invoiced 

iii. Applicable Payment Rate (as stipulated in Section C.3.) of each 
service invoiced 

iv. Amount Due by Service 
v. Total Amount Due for the invoice period 

 
b. The Contractor understands and agrees that an invoice under this Contract shall: 
 

(1) include only charges for service described in Contract Section A and in 
accordance with payment terms and conditions set forth in Contract 
Section C;  

(2) only be submitted for completed service and shall not include any charge 
for future work; 

(3) not include sales tax or shipping charges; and 
(4) initiate the timeframe for payment (and any discounts) only when the 

State is in receipt of the invoice, and the invoice meets the minimum 
requirements of this section C.5. 

 
C.6. Payment of Invoice.  A payment by the State shall not prejudice the State's right to object 

to or question any payment, invoice, or matter in relation thereto.  A payment by the State 
shall not be construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided or as 
approval of any amount invoiced.   

 
C.7. Invoice Reductions.  The Contractor's invoice shall be subject to reduction for amounts 

included in any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by the State, 
on the basis of audits conducted in accordance with the terms of this Contract, not to 
constitute proper remuneration for compensable services.   

 
C.8. Deductions.  The State reserves the right to deduct from amounts, which are or shall 

become due and payable to the Contractor under this or any contract between the 
Contractor and the State of Tennessee any amounts, which are or shall become due and 
payable to the State of Tennessee by the Contractor. 

 
C.9. Prerequisite Documentation.  The Contractor shall not invoice the State under this 

Contract until the State has received the following documentation properly completed.   
 

a. The Contractor shall complete, sign, and present to the State an "Authorization 
Agreement for Automatic Deposit (ACH Credits) Form" provided by the State.  By 
doing so, the Contractor acknowledges and agrees that, once said form is 
received by the State, all payments to the Contractor, under this or any other 
contract the Contractor has with the State of Tennessee shall be made by 
Automated Clearing House (ACH). 

 



b. The Contractor shall complete, sign, and present to the State a "Substitute W-9 
Form” provided by the State.  The taxpayer identification number detailed by said 
form must agree with the Contractor's Federal Employer Identification Number or 
Tennessee Edison Registration ID referenced in this Contract.   

 
D. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 
D.1. Required Approvals.  The State is not bound by this Contract until it is signed by the 

contract parties and approved by appropriate officials in accordance with applicable 
Tennessee laws and regulations (depending upon the specifics of this contract, said 
officials may include, but are not limited to, the Commissioner of Finance and 
Administration, the Commissioner of Human Resources, and the Comptroller of the 
Treasury). 

 
D.2. Modification and Amendment.  This Contract may be modified only by a written 

amendment signed by all parties hereto and approved by both the officials who approved 
the base contract and, depending upon the specifics of the contract as amended, any 
additional officials required by Tennessee laws and regulations (said officials may 
include, but are not limited to, the Commissioner of Finance and Administration, the 
Commissioner of Human Resources, and the Comptroller of the Treasury). 

 
D.3. Termination for Convenience.  The State may terminate this Contract without cause for 

any reason.  Said termination shall not be deemed a breach of contract by the State.  The 
State shall give the Contractor at least thirty (30) days written notice before the effective 
termination date.  The Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for satisfactory, 
authorized service completed as of the termination date, but in no event shall the State 
be liable to the Contractor for compensation for any service which has not been 
rendered.   Upon such termination, the Contractor shall have no right to any actual 
general, special, incidental, consequential, or any other damages whatsoever of any 
description or amount. 

 
D.4. Termination for Cause.  If the Contractor fails to properly perform its obligations under 

this Contract in a timely or proper manner, or if the Contractor violates any terms of this 
Contract, the State shall have the right to immediately terminate the Contract and 
withhold payments in excess of fair compensation for completed services.  
Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the State for 
damages sustained by virtue of any breach of this Contract by the Contractor. 

 
D.5. Subcontracting.  The Contractor shall not assign this Contract or enter into a subcontract 

for any of the services performed under this Contract without obtaining the prior written 
approval of the State.  If such subcontracts are approved by the State, each shall contain, 
at a minimum, sections of this Contract below pertaining to "Conflicts of Interest," 
"Nondiscrimination," and “Records” (as identified by the section headings).  
Notwithstanding any use of approved subcontractors, the Contractor shall be the prime 
contractor and shall be responsible for all work performed. 

 
D.6. Conflicts of Interest.  The Contractor warrants that no part of the total Contract Amount 

shall be paid directly or indirectly to an employee or official of the State of Tennessee as 
wages, compensation, or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee, 
subcontractor, or consultant to the Contractor in connection with any work contemplated 
or performed relative to this Contract.  

 
D.7. Nondiscrimination.  The Contractor hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person 

shall be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected 
to discrimination in the performance of this Contract or in the employment practices of the 
Contractor on the grounds of handicap or disability, age, race, color, religion, sex, 



national origin, or any other classification protected by Federal, Tennessee State 
constitutional, or statutory law.  The Contractor shall, upon request, show proof of such 
nondiscrimination and shall post in conspicuous places, available to all employees and 
applicants, notices of nondiscrimination. 

 
D.8. Records.  The Contractor shall maintain documentation for all charges under this 

Contract.  The books, records, and documents of the Contractor, insofar as they relate to 
work performed or money received under this Contract, shall be maintained for a period 
of three (3) full years from the date of the final payment and shall be subject to audit at 
any reasonable time and upon reasonable notice by the State, the Comptroller of the 
Treasury, or their duly appointed representatives.  The financial statements shall be 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

 
D.9. Prevailing Wage Rates.  All contracts for construction, erection, or demolition or to install 

goods or materials that involve the expenditure of any funds derived from the State 
require compliance with the prevailing wage laws as provided in Tennessee Code 
Annotated, Section 12-4-401 et seq.. 

 
D.10. Monitoring.  The Contractor’s activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to 

this Contract shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by the State, the Comptroller 
of the Treasury, or their duly appointed representatives. 

 
D.11. Progress Reports.  The Contractor shall submit brief, periodic, progress reports to the 

State as requested. 
 
D.12. Strict Performance.  Failure by any party to this Contract to insist in any one or more 

cases upon the strict performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or 
provisions of this Contract shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any 
such term, covenant, condition, or provision.  No term or condition of this Contract shall 
be held to be waived, modified, or deleted except by a written amendment signed by the 
parties hereto. 

 
D.13. Independent Contractor.  The parties hereto, in the performance of this Contract, shall 

not act as employees, partners, joint venturers, or associates of one another.  It is 
expressly acknowledged by the parties hereto that such parties are independent 
contracting entities and that nothing in this Contract shall be construed to create a 
employer/employee relationship or to allow either to exercise control or direction over the 
manner or method by which the other transacts its business affairs or provides its usual 
services.  The employees or agents of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be 
the employees or agents of the other party for any purpose whatsoever. 
 
The Contractor, being a Tennessee governmental entity, is governed by the provisions of 
the Tennessee Government Tort Liability Act, Tennessee Code Annotated, Sections 29-
20-101 et seq., for causes of action sounding in tort.  Further, no contract provision 
requiring a Tennessee political entity to indemnify or hold harmless the State beyond the 
liability imposed by law is enforceable because it appropriates public money and nullifies 
governmental immunity without the authorization of the General Assembly. 

 
D.14. State Liability.  The State shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this 

Contract. 
 
D.15. Force Majeure.  The obligations of the parties to this Contract are subject to prevention 

by causes beyond the parties’ control that could not be avoided by the exercise of due 
care including, but not limited to, natural disasters, riots, wars, epidemics, or any other 
similar cause. 

 



D.16. State and Federal Compliance.  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable State and 
Federal laws and regulations in the performance of this Contract. 

 
D.17. Governing Law.  This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 

the laws of the State of Tennessee.  The Contractor agrees that it will be subject to the 
exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Tennessee in actions that may arise 
under this Contract.  The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that any rights or claims 
against the State of Tennessee or its employees hereunder, and any remedies arising 
therefrom, shall be subject to and limited to those rights and remedies, if any, available 
under Tennessee Code Annotated, Sections 9-8-101 through 9-8-407. 

 
D.18. Completeness.  This Contract is complete and contains the entire understanding between 

the parties relating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the terms and 
conditions of the parties’ agreement.  This Contract supersedes any and all prior 
understandings, representations, negotiations, and agreements between the parties 
relating hereto, whether written or oral. 

 
D.19. Severability.  If any terms and conditions of this Contract are held to be invalid or 

unenforceable as a matter of law, the other terms and conditions hereof shall not be 
affected thereby and shall remain in full force and effect.  To this end, the terms and 
conditions of this Contract are declared severable. 

 
D.20. Headings.  Section headings of this Contract are for reference purposes only and shall 

not be construed as part of this Contract. 
 
E. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 
E.1. Conflicting Terms and Conditions.  Should any of these special terms and conditions 

conflict with any other terms and conditions of this Contract, these special terms and 
conditions shall control.  

 
E.2. Communications and Contacts.  All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other 

communications required or contemplated by this Contract shall be in writing and shall be 
made by certified, first class mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid, by 
overnight courier service with an asset tracking system, or by EMAIL or facsimile 
transmission with recipient confirmation.  Any such communications, regardless of 
method of transmission, shall be addressed to the respective party at the appropriate 
mailing address, facsimile number, or EMAIL address as set forth below or to that of such 
other party or address, as may be hereafter specified by written notice. 
 
The State: 
 
Tommy Farmer, ASAC  

 Tennessee Bureau of Investigation 
540 McCallie Avenue, Suite 411 

 Chattanooga, Tennessee 37402 
 Thomas.farmer@tn.gov 
 Telephone #  423-752-1479 

FAX #  423-267-8983 
 
The Contractor: 
 
Jim Coppinger, Hamilton County Mayor 
Hamilton County, Tennessee 
208 Courthouse 



 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
Telephone #  423-209-6100 
FAX #  423-209-6101 
 
All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other communications shall be 
considered effectively given upon receipt or recipient confirmation as may be required. 

 
E.3. Subject to Funds Availability.  The Contract is subject to the appropriation and availability 

of State and/or Federal funds.  In the event that the funds are not appropriated or are 
otherwise unavailable, the State reserves the right to terminate the Contract upon written 
notice to the Contractor.  Said termination shall not be deemed a breach of Contract by 
the State.  Upon receipt of the written notice, the Contractor shall cease all work 
associated with the Contract.  Should such an event occur, the Contractor shall be 
entitled to compensation for all satisfactory and authorized services completed as of the 
termination date.  Upon such termination, the Contractor shall have no right to recover 
from the State any actual, general, special, incidental, consequential, or any other 
damages whatsoever of any description or amount. 
 

E.4. Confidentiality of Records. Strict standards of confidentiality of records and information 
shall be maintained in accordance with applicable state and federal law.  All material and 
information, regardless of form, medium or method of communication, provided to the 
Contractor by the State or acquired by the Contractor on behalf of the State shall be 
regarded as confidential information in accordance with the provisions of applicable state 
and federal law, state and federal rules and regulations, departmental policy, and ethical 
standards.  Such confidential information shall not be disclosed, and all necessary steps 
shall be taken by the Contractor to safeguard the confidentiality of such material or 
information in conformance with applicable state and federal law, state and federal rules 
and regulations, departmental policy, and ethical standards. 
 
The Contractor’s obligations under this section do not apply to information in the public 
domain; entering the public domain but not from a breach by the Contractor of this 
Contract; previously possessed by the Contractor without written obligations to the State 
to protect it; acquired by the Contractor without written restrictions against disclosure 
from a third party which, to the Contractor’s knowledge, is free to disclose the 
information; independently developed by the Contractor without the use of the State’s 
information; or, disclosed by the State to others without restrictions against disclosure. 
Nothing in this paragraph shall permit Contractor to disclose any information that is 
confidential under federal or state law or regulations, regardless of whether it has been 
disclosed or made available to the Contractor due to intentional or negligent actions or 
inactions of agents of the State or third parties. 
 
It is expressly understood and agreed the obligations set forth in this section shall survive 
the termination of this Contract. 

 
E.5. State Furnished Property.  The Contractor shall be responsible for the correct use, 

maintenance, and protection of all articles of nonexpendable, tangible, personal property 
furnished by the State for the Contractor’s temporary use under this Contract.  Upon 
termination of this Contract, all property furnished shall be returned to the State in good 
order and condition as when received, reasonable use and wear thereof excepted.  
Should the property be destroyed, lost, or stolen, the Contractor shall be responsible to 
the State for the residual value of the property at the time of loss. 

 
E.6. Debarment and Suspension.  The Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, that it, its current and future principals, its current and future subcontractors and 
their principals: 

 



a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal or 
state department or agency; 

 
b. have not within a three (3) year period preceding this Contract been convicted of, 

or had a civil judgment rendered against them from commission of fraud, or a 
criminal offence in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing 
a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or grant under a public transaction; 
violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, 
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification, or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
c. are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 

government entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses 
detailed in section b. of this certification;  and 

 
d. have not within a three (3) year period preceding this Contract had one or more 

public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 

 The Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the State if at any time it learns  
that there was an earlier failure to disclose information or that due to changed 
circumstances, its principals or the principals of its subcontractors are excluded or 
disqualified. 

 
E.7. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA).  This Contract requires 

the Contractor to provide supplies and/or services that are funded in whole or in part by 
federal funds that are subject to FFATA. The Contractor is responsible for ensuring that 
all applicable requirements, including but not limited to those set forth herein, of FFATA 
are met and that the Contractor provides information to the State as required.   

 
The Contractor shall comply with the following: 

 
a. Reporting of Total Compensation of the Contractor’s Executives.  

 
(1) The Contractor shall report the names and total compensation of each of 

its five most highly compensated executives for the Contractor’s 
preceding completed fiscal year, if in the Contractor’s preceding fiscal 
year it received: 
 
i. 80 percent or more of the Contractor’s annual gross revenues 

from Federal procurement contracts and Federal financial 
assistance subject to the Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR 
170.320 (and subawards); and  

ii. $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal 
procurement contracts (and subcontracts), and Federal financial 
assistance subject to the Transparency Act (and subawards); 
and 

iii. The public does not have access to information about the 
compensation of the executives through periodic reports filed 
under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986. (To determine if the public has access to 
the compensation information, see the U.S. Security and 
Exchange Commission total compensation filings at 
http://www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.). 

 



Executive means officers, managing partners, or any other employees in 
management positions. 
 

(2) Total compensation means the cash and noncash dollar value earned by 
the executive during the Contractor’s preceding fiscal year and includes 
the following (for more information see 17 CFR 229.402(c)(2)):  

 
i. Salary and bonus.  
ii. Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights. 

Use the dollar amount recognized for financial statement 
reporting purposes with respect to the fiscal year in accordance 
with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 
(Revised 2004) (FAS 123R), Shared Based Payments.  

iii. Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans. This 
does not include group life, health, hospitalization or medical 
reimbursement plans that do not discriminate in favor of 
executives, and are available generally to all salaried employees.  

iv. Change in pension value. This is the change in present value of 
defined benefit and actuarial pension plans.  

v. Above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not 
tax qualified.  

vi. Other compensation, if the aggregate value of all such other 
compensation (e.g. severance, termination payments, value of 
life insurance paid on behalf of the employee, perquisites or 
property) for the executive exceeds $10,000. 

 
b. The Contractor must report executive total compensation described above to the 

State by the end of the month during which this Contract is awarded.   
 
c. If this Contract is amended to extend its term, the Contractor must submit an 

executive total compensation report to the State by the end of the month in which 
the amendment to this Contract becomes effective. 

 
d. The Contractor will obtain a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number 

and maintain its DUNS number for the term of this Contract.  More information 
about obtaining a DUNS Number can be found at:  
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/ 

 
 The Contractor’s failure to comply with the above requirements is a material breach of 

this Contract for which the State may terminate this Contract for cause.  The State will not 
be obligated to pay any outstanding invoice received from the Contractor unless and until 
the Contractor is in full compliance with the above requirements. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE: 

 

CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE DATE 

Jim S. Coppinger, Mayor of  Hamilton County, Tennessee 

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/


PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTOR SIGNATORY (above)  

TENNESSEE BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION: 

 

MARK GWYN, DIRECTOR DATE 
 



No. 115-34 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF DECEMBER 1, 2014, THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2014, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between December 1, 2014, through December 31, 

2014.  
 
 December 1, 2014, $16,530.15 for 8,504 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.943809 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 December 1, 2014, $1,089.50 for 500 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.1790 

per gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 December 4, 2014, $14,885.91 for 8,482 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.7550 per gallon 

from Collins Oil Company, Inc. 
 
 December 9, 2014, $968.76 including $704.76 for 250 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.81905 

per gallon and $264.00 for 100 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.6400 per 
gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 

  
 December 9, 2014, $14,640.99 for 8,542 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.7140 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.. 
 
 December 10, 2014, $14,700.55 for 8,527 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.7240 per gallon 

from Collins Oil Company, Inc. 
  
 December 11, 2014, $13,147.11 for 8,041 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.635009 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
  
 December 11, 2014, $14,643.20 for 7,311 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.0029 per gallon 



 

 

from Sweetwater Valley Oil Company. 
 
December 17, 2014, $2,154.00 for 1,200 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.7950 per gallon from 

Collins Oil Company, Inc. 
 
December 19, 2014, $1,432.00 for 800 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.7900 per gallon from 

Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
December 30, 2014, $13,338.63 for 8,016 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.664001 per gallon from Jat Oil and 

Supply, Inc. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 115-35 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION (1) ESTABLISHING THE MINIMUM BID AMOUNT FOR CERTAIN 
PARCELS OF PROPERTY ACQUIRED BY HAMILTON COUNTY THROUGH 
PREVIOUS DELINQUENT TAX SALES, (2) AUTHORIZING THE OFFER OF SAID 
PARCELS FOR SALE AT THAT MINIMUM BID AMOUNT, AND (3) AUTHORIZING 
CERTAIN SAID PARCELS TO BE OFFERED FOR SALE FOR AN AMOUNT LESS 
THAN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF TAXES, PENALTY, COST AND INTEREST 
ACCUMULATED AGAINST THE PROPERTY. 
 
 
WHEREAS,   on September 15, 1982, the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners adopted      

Resolution No. 982-28 creating the Delinquent Tax Property Disposition 
Special Committee to aid in the disposition of property acquired by Hamilton    
County through delinquent tax sales; and, 
 

WHEREAS,   said Special Committee along with the County Mayor has placed a fair price  
on each parcel of such property as required by Tennessee Code Annotated,    
Section 67-5-2507; and, 
 

WHEREAS,    provided that it appears impossible to sell any tract of said property for the   
total amount of taxes, penalty, cost and interest accumulated against the       
property,  pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 67-5-2507, upon 
application, the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners may authorize 
those parcels for sale at some lesser amount, and it is the recommendation of 
said Special Committee along with the County Mayor, same being the 
minimum bid amount; and, 

 
 WHEREAS,    the fair price hereinafter referred to as the minimum bid amount, was  
    determined to be a fair and reasonable price. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 



 

 

    That the parcels of property listed on the attached list which were acquired  
through previous delinquent tax sales are hereby offered for sale at the 
minimum bid amount shown which has been determined to be a fair and 
reasonable price, all parcels identified by State Tax Map Numbers, the 
complete list and bidding information being attached and incorporated herein 
by reference thereto as though fully and completely copied verbatim herein. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 































No. 115-36 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE ALL 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO CONVEY TO THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA 
HAMILTON COUNTY’S INTEREST IN PROPERTY JOINTLY OWNED BY THE CITY 
AND COUNTY. 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County (County) and the City of Chattanooga (City) jointly own 

property identified by State Tax Map No. 156G-B-014.01, also known as the 
former Oak Grove Elementary School Playground, consisting of 
approximately 1.4 acres; and, 

 
WHEREAS, said property is not useful for current or future needs of the County; and, 
  
WHEREAS, the City has requested the transfer of the County’s interest in said property to 

make improvements and to maintain the former playground as a public park; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Hamilton County to convey its interest in said 

property to the City in order to provide a public park for the benefit of the 
Oak Grove Community.     

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 That the request made by the City of Chattanooga that Hamilton County convey its 

interest in the property identified by State Tax Map No. 156G-B-014.01, formerly 
known as the Oak Grove Elementary School Playground, consisting of approximately 
1.4 acres, be granted to facilitate the creation of a public park by the City of 
Chattanooga and that the County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute all documents 
necessary to convey Hamilton County’s interest in said property to the City of 
Chattanooga, location of said property shown on the attached map,  

   
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 



 

 

AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 115-37 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION FOR WALDENS RIDGE EMERGENCY SERVICES TO SELL A 1971 CUSTOM 
SEAGRAVE PUMPER WHICH IS CO-TITLED WITH HAMILTON COUNTY GOVERNMENT 
AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
WHEREAS,  A 1971 CUSTOM SEAGRAVE PUMPER MODEL PB23068, VIN # R-4780, 
MILEAGE 58130, MOTOR MILEAGE 95282 WITH TAG # GM5882; AND, 

WHEREAS,  WALDENS RIDGE EMERGENCY SERVICES DESIRE THAT SAID VEHICLE BE 
SOLD AND, 

WHEREAS,  IN THE AMOUNT CONSIDERED ECONOMICALLY FAIR AND, 

WHEREAS, THAT SAID MONIES FROM THE SALE OF THE VEHICLE BE UTILIZED TO 
PURCHASE A FUTURE VEHICLE; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

(1) That Hamilton County’s interest in said vehicle be terminated by sale in an “as is” condition; 
and, 
 

(2) That if sold by Walden’s Ridge Emergency Services, said vehicle be sold in a commercially 
reasonable manner and the proceeds applied to the future purchase of vehicle by and for the 
Walden’s Ridge Emergency Services. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 115-38 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION FOR WALDENS RIDGE EMERGENCY SERVICES TO SELL A 1980 
FMC/FORD PUMPER WHICH IS CO-TITLED WITH HAMILTON COUNTY GOVERNMENT 
AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS,  A 1980 FMC/FORD PUMPER VIN C70KVGO6934, TAG # GI-3135, MILEAGE 
31,395; AND, 
 
WHEREAS,  WALDENS RIDGE EMERGENCY SERVICES DESIRE THAT SAID VEHICLE BE 
SOLD AND, 
 
WHEREAS,  IN THE AMOUNT CONSIDERED ECONOMICALLY FAIR AND, 
 
WHEREAS, THAT SAID MONIES FROM THE SALE OF THE VEHICLE BE UTILIZED TO 
PURCHASE RESCUE/FIREFIGHTING EQUIPMENT; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 

(1) That Hamilton County’s interest in said vehicle be terminated by sale in an “as is” condition; 
and, 
 

(2) That if sold by Waldens Ridge Emergency Services, said vehicle be sold in a commercially 
reasonable manner and the proceeds applied to the  purchase of rescue/firefighting equipment 
for the Walden’s Ridge Emergency Services. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

Click here to enter a date. 

  
Date 

 



No. 115-39 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
January 21, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH THE 
DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY OF THE TENNESSEE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FOR A 2015 
HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT WITH A PERIOD OF 09/01/2014 THROUGH 04/30/2016 AND 
AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT BY ADDING $ 170,836.20 TO 
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County is receiving a $170,836.20 Federal Homeland Security grant through the 
State Department of Military: and, 
 
WHEREAS, the grant will serve emergency responders to the City of Chattanooga, Hamilton County 
and Homeland Security District 3: and, 
 
WHEREAS, no match is required, and, 
 
WHEREAS, the grant will fund equipment, training and supplies that will improve the ability of 
emergency responders to deal with acts of terrorism and catastrophic events; and, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
The County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a contract and any subsequent amendments with 
the Tennessee Department of Military for a 2015 Homeland Security grant with a period 09/01/2014 
through 04/30/2016, and the budget of the Emergency Services Department is amended by adding 
$170,836.20 to Revenue and Expenditures. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE 
PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

January 21, 2015 

  
Date 

 




































	1-21-15 Agenda 
	115-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - December 31, 2014 _1310_12-31-14 Recessed
	115-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - December 31, 2014 _1312_12-31-14 Agenda
	115-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - January 7, 2015 _1311_01-07-15 Regular
	115-_S_Report_Order of Designation - Planning Commission -Todd Leamon - January 12, 2015_1300_Order of Designation - Todd Leamon - January 12-15
	115-22_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1314_01-21-15
	115-22_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1314_01-21-15A
	115-23_R_Appointment(s)_Reappointment of one member to The Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority Board of Trustees._1307_Reapptmnt 1 Mem Chatta Haml Co Hospital Auth. Brd of Trustees
	115-24_R_Appointment(s)_Confirming the reappointment of one member to The Carter Street Corporation Board of Directors._1308_Reapptmnt 1 Mem The Carter Street Corporation Brd of Directors
	115-25A_R_Zoning_Zoning_1279_129
	115-25A_S_Zoning_Zoning_1279_20141215115910092
	115-25B_R_Zoning_Zoning_1280_129b
	115-25B_S_Zoning_Zoning_1280_20141215115910092
	115-26_R_Zoning_Zoning_1282_137
	115-26_S_Zoning_Zoning_1282_20141215115938421
	115-27_R_Zoning_Zoning_1283_138
	115-27_S_Zoning_Zoning_1283_20141215120004734
	115-28_R_Zoning_Zoning_1284_141
	115-28_S_Zoning_Zoning_1284_20141215120020352
	115-29_R_Zoning_Zoning_1285_Date Text
	115-29_S_Zoning_Zoning_1285_20141215120031503
	115-30_R_Sheriff Hammond_Sheriff and School Board Officers._1293_Sheriff and School Board SROs
	115-31_R_Dan Saieed_State Energy Grant Application_1313_State Energy Grant Resolution to Apply
	115-32_R_Becky Barnes_Childhood Lead Poisoning Program._1301_Resolution 2015-18 Lead for CERT
	115-32_S_Becky Barnes_Childhood Lead Poisoning Program._1301_Lead contract from State 34360-40016 ready for sign
	115-33_R_Albert Kiser_TBI contract for software project._1302_TBI TMTF Contract 2015 Resolution
	115-33_S_Albert Kiser_TBI contract for software project._1302_TBI TMTF Contract 2015
	115-34_R_Albert Kiser_Fuel December 2014_1309_Fuel Resolution December 2014
	115-34_S_Albert Kiser_Fuel December 2014_1309_December 2014 docs
	115-35_R_Todd Leamon_Annual Property Sale of Former Back Tax Properties._1304_2015 Property Sale
	115-35_S_Todd Leamon_Annual Property Sale of Former Back Tax Properties._1304_2015 Property Sale PDF (LARK)
	115-36_R_Todd Leamon_Convey County's interest in park property to City of Chattanooga._1305_Res. Oak Grove Playground to City
	115-36_S_Todd Leamon_Convey County's interest in park property to City of Chattanooga._1305_Attachments Oak Grove Playground
	115-37_R_Don Allen_Sale of a 1971 Custom Seagrave PumperTTP._1292_WALDENS RIDGE PUMPER
	115-38_R_Don Allen_Sale of a 1980 FMC Ford Pumper._1303_WALDENS RIDGE
	115-39_R_Don Allen_Homeland Security Grant._1306_2015 Homeland Security Grant. 170,836.20
	115-39_S_Don Allen_ Homeland Security Grant

